CITYOF DUNEDIN

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

i § G s, B T

(/Dmprchenswe Annual
Fmancxal RePort




CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

CITY COMMISSION

ROBERT HACKWORTH
Mayor

DAVE EGGERS
Vice Mayor - Commissioner

JULIE WARD BUJALSKI DEBORAH KYNES JULIE SCALES
Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner
CITY MANAGER
ROBERT DISPIRITO

FINANCE DIRECTOR

M. EARL SANDERS, CPA

PREPARED BY: CITY OF DUNEDIN FINANCE DEPARTMENT



This page is intentionally left blank

il



City of Dunedin, Florida
Comprehensive Apnual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION:
Title Page and List of Elected and Appointed Officials.........coooiis i srmseanre e seaes s emessssns oo i
Letter of Transtriftal ... oo st e st e b b e et b e e vii
Orgamizational CRATT ... et e roe e s v v rare s e eesde e v s s rerasse e oo m £ anbenssbdanEnesabsasdeceearees Xiil
FINANCIAL SECTION:
Independent AUditor’s REPOIT ...ttt e tssa s s b s s e e et e b s e sa e A-tl
Manragement’s Discussion and ADNAIYSIS .. ..v.eeiieriinr e ettt s et A-13

Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Statements:

StateMENT OF BT ASSEES L oiiiiriiri i irretstiae i s eaee s s e tedbestimessesas sameeeessbs st enbes srmmmsssn s s srensennaren B-2
SLALEIMENT OF ACTIVILIES 11vvvviivvs s e s ivaerisirsrstessreiarisrerenissssosssnssmnes e sirtass basbsatsiesesanenseearearabaeess B-3

Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet - Governmental FUNAS .......cccoeveveiceiiiiissrissiessseses vessensastesssnscsersreneseeneens B = 4
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds............oovviien e B-6
Reconciliation of the Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the

Statement 0F ACHVITIES ..o e et e B-7
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget and Actual - General Fun@ ..o e B-8§
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget to Actual - One Cent Sales TAX ...t s ens B-9
Statement of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds B-10
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund

Net Assets - Proprietary FUnds .. ... ernna s e aa e s B-12
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds ... v B-14
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds ... e s B-16
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets - Fiduciary Funds .............oovriccviennns B-17

Notes 10 FINAancial SEIEIMEIIS. ... ettt et esseaserere e s cmssrass s s rae b vmaes s ee e ess st s st asseranees C-1
Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules:
Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmentai Funds. ... D-4
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds..........c.ococoieeccceniiniieonne, D-38

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget to Actual - Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Government Grants Fund ...t D-11
Dunedin Staditm FUnd ... ......veieeeoean o seeseeseaesenee s e eesssseessosssrsraassesssesssesseees D-12
IMPAct FEES FUNM .....cvoeineeei e e sesmsr st st e cnre s s D-13
Fine Arts Center Fund ...ty ey D-14
Community Redevelopment Agency Fund ... e D-15
G. Koutsourias Youth Fund.........c.ccomininniimm i D-16
Harborview Dredging Debt Service FUnd.......ocovvvcccieciicimnnnn s e, D-17
Capital Improvement Debt Service Fund ... D-19
Stadium Capital Project FUnd...........ocoocoiieiiiriseceecrrnenis s sas st srsvs e vnrsessmssens D-20



This page is intentionally left blank

iv



City of Dunedin, Florida
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION:

Combining and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules:

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget 1o Actual - Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

County Gas Tax Fund...........c s D-21
Leisvre Services Capital Improvement Fund........coooviiiiinnisnin D-22
Capital Improvement Fund ... D-23
Information Technology Project FUnd ... D-24
Combining Statement of Net Assets - Internal Service Funds .......c.ocoocvvcnreveinericenieonnins D-26

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Fund Net Assets - Internal Service Funds.....cooimi e D-27
Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Intemal Service Funds ..........ccoooocininiiivennnens D-28
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets.........o.oiiiiiiiiiii e D-30
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets..............iiinn . D-31

STATISTICAL SECTION:

Table 1 Net Assets BY COMPONENL.....coocvirieiiiiien i e s st sasssssns s s nassen s E-1
Table IT Changes In INEt ASSELS...c..uviriieeirteiesieeee st e et sae s e croe e o ere e e caerreceeseasesser e st assareerntaeres E-2
Table Il Changes in Net Assets {(Continued). ......ooviviiiiiiiiiirn e E-3
Table IV General Governmental Tax Revenues By Source - Last Ten Fiscal Years........coocovvnin E-4
Table V Fund Balances — Governmental Funds..........cooiiioorrice e E-5
Table VI  Change in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds - Last Five Fiscal Years................... E-6
Table VII  General Governmental Expenditures and Transfers by Function - Last Ten Fiscal Years...E -7
Table VIII  Assessed Value of Taxable Property — Last Ten Fiscal Years.................coonrininvinnn E-8
Table IX  Property Tax Rates — Last Ten Fiscal Years........................... E-9
Table X Principal Tax Payer — Last Two Fiscal Years........ooovivriiiine e E-10
Table XI  Property Tax Levies and Collections - Last Ten Fiscal Years........oococermvcnnimnnininns E-11
Table XII  Ratios of Outstanding Debt By Type... ... E-12
Table XIII Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt ..o E-13
Table XIV Revenue Bond Coverage — Water and Sewer - Last Ten Fiscal Years. ... E.14
TableXV  Schedule of Debt Service Ratio. ... .cc...ooiiiiiiiii i i e e, E-15
TableXVI  Schedule of Total Annual Debt Service — Last Two Fiscal Years plus Next Year............ E-16
Table XVII Demographic Statistics — Last Ten Fiscal Years...............cocooii E-17
Table XVIII Miscellaneous Statistics................ PO E-18



This page is intentionally left blank

vi



- PO, BOX 1348
DUNEDIN, FLORIDA 34697~ 348
{727 298-3000

March 31, 2007

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Commission,
and Citizens of the City of Dunedin, Florida

We hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Dunedin, Florida for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. This report presents a complete set of financial statements
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants.

The report consists of management’s representations concering the finances of the City of Dunedin,
Florida (the “City™"). Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness
and reliability of all of the information presented 1n this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, the City’s management team has established a comprehensive internal
control framework that 15 designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, thefl, or misuse
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the presentation of the City’s financial statements
in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of intemal controls should not outweigh their benefits,
the City’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designexd to provide reasonable
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.
As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Davidson, Jamieson & Cristini, P.L., a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, are
free of materia) misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial slalements; assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified optnion that the City’s financial statements tor the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

vii
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The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was a part of a broader, federally
mandated Single Audit designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal contro! and
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the
City’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The City incorporated in June 1899, is located in the western part of the state, bordering the north
side of Clearwater, Florida. The City currently occupies a land area of 25 square miles and serves a
population of approximately 37,000. The City is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and
personal properties located within its boundaries. [t also is empowered by state statute to extend its
corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing
council,

The City operates under the commission-manager form of government. Policy-making and
legislative authority are vested in a governing body consisting of the mayor and four commissioners.
The City Commission is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the
budget, appointing committees, and hiring the city manager, city clerk, independent auditor and
attomey. The city manager is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City
Commission, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for appointing the
heads of the various departments. The City Commission is elected on a non-partisan basis.
Commission members, to include the mayor, serve three-year staggered terms, with up to two
commission members elected every year. The mayor and the City Commission members are elected
at large.

The City provides a full range of services, including contracted law enforcement and fire protection;
the construction and maintenance of highways, streets, and other infrastructure; library, parks and
recreation, marina, golf course, spring training facilities (for the Toronto Blue Jays), water and
sewer, reclaimed water and solid waste. The City also has a Community Redevelopment Agency
which is reported within the City’s financial statements.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. All

departments of the City are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City’s manager in
April of each year. The manager uses these requests as a starting point for developing a proposed
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budget. The manager will present the proposed budget to the City Commission at the first meeting
in July. The proposed budget will then be reviewed and discussed at workshaops prior to final
adoption. The City Commission is required to hold two (2) public hearings on the proposed budget
and to adopt a final budget by no later than September 30, the close of the City’s fiscal year. The
appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function {e.g., public safety), and department (e.g., fire).
Department heads may make transfers of appropnations within a department and fund. Transfers of
appropriations between funds, however, require the special approval of the City Commission.
Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual govemmental fund for
which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this comparison is
presented on page B-8 as part of the basic financial statements for the governmental funds. For
governmental funds, other than the general fund, with appropriated annual budgets, this comparison
is presented on pages B-9 and D11 - D24.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City operates.

Local economy. The economy of Dunedin is primarily dependent upon tourism, services and
retirement living. The City mainly consists of residential land uses (47%) and recreational land uses
{28%). Industrial and commercial land uses comprise only one percent and four percent, respectively,
of the City’s land area. Major employers include Mease Hospital Dunedin, 2 medical complex, Coca-
Cola North America, Mease Manor Inc. (a retirement facility), the City of Dunedin and the Pinellas
County School System. The City has only one small industrial park. The service industry (banking,
retailing, personal services, etc.) has risen significantly to meet the demands of the area’s population.

The City’s total labor force was 19,037 people in December 2006. In that same month, unemployment
for Pinellas County was 2.8%, and the unemployment rate for the City was 2.6%.

The retirement population continues to influence the local economy. Thirty percent of Dunedin’s
residents were of retirement age (65 and over) in 2000. Dunedin has many retirement homes,
condominiums and apartment complexes which accommodate retirees. More young families are
moving into the City; therefore, the median age (which was 44.0 years of age in 2005) is continuing to
decline. The local economy is also influenced during the winter months by a seasonal population of
approximately 3,400 people,

Per capita income in Pinellas County has increased by 35% between 1996 and 2005 (the most recent
year for which this information is available) to $33,316.



Long-term financial planning. St Andrews Links golf course was purchased by the City in
December 2002, and renovations since then continue to improve playing conditions and use by the
public. In fiscal year 2005, the City Commission approved construction of a $9.8 million community
center, which was completed in the fall of 2006. Funding was obtained through issuance of $10
million in Sales Tax Revenue Bonds.

Cash management policies and practices. Cash balances during the year were invested in U.S,
Government Securities, U.S. Government agency and instrumentality secunties, Bank of America
(checking) and the State Board of Administration investment pool. The maturities of the
investments range from 23 days to 10 years, with an average maturity of .4 years. The City’s average
yield on investments (excluding pension funds) was 4.55 percent.

Risk management. The Self-Insurance Fund is maintained as an Intemal Service Fund and charges
its operating costs annually among all City cost centers. The allocations are based on various
exposure factors (i.e.; number of personnel, property values, etc.) along with past claims experience.

The City utilizes this fund to self-insure its first $250,000 of property damage per occurrence (except
wind, hail, and named storms, which has a deductible of 5% of total location value per building,
subject to a minimum of $500,000), and its first $250,000 of any employee work injury. The City
also self-insures all auto liability and the majority of general liability losses, except for Dunedin
recreation summer camp and St. Andrews Links Golf Course, where separate insurance policies are
utilized.

Pension and other post employment benefits.

The Firefighters' Retirement Plan is a defined benefit plan established under Chapter 175 of Florida
Statutes.

All other qualified City employees hired before January 1, 1996 participate in the Florida Retirement
System Pension Plan which is administered by the State of Florida, Department of Administration,
Division of Retirement. At September 30, 2006, the City contributed 9.85% of regular employee
gross wages to the plan.

Al employees hired subsequent to December 31, 1995 who would qualify for participation in the
Florida Retirement System participate in the City's defined contribution plan. The City's
contribution rate is 10% of employee's gross wages.

Additional information on the City’s pension arrangements can be found on pages C-38 to C-451n
the notes to the financial statements.
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The Honorable Mayor
and City Commissioners
City of Dunedin, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, the budgetary comparisons for those major funds, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Dunedin, Florida, as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management.
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America as established by the Auditing Standards Board of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government duditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are fee of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dunedin, Florida, as of
September 30, 2006, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for each major fund for the year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



The Honorable Mayor
and City Commission

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
22, 2007 on our consideration of the City of Dunedin, Florida’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The accompanying management’s discussion and analysis on pages A-3 through A-15 is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of management and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information
and express no opinion on it.

Our andit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying introductory section,
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical tables
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules have
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on them.

Sadsons, Youraios § Ot i, gL

January 22, 2007



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Dunedin, Florida (the *“City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2006. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can
be found on pages vii — xt of this report.

Financizl Highlights

The City’s assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $106,253,893
{net assets). Of this amount, $26,038,477 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The City’s total net assets increased by $3,900,444 (3.8%). Net assets supporting governmental
activities increased $4,916,584 (10.4%) and business-type activities net assets decreased $1,016,140
(1.8%).

On September 30, 2006 the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$20,052,482, a decrease of $5,395,286. This decrease reflects completion of major construction of
the City’s new community center.

On September 30, 2006, unallocated and undesignated fund balance for the general fund was
$5,494,201 (21.6%) of total general fund expenditures.

Overview of Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended fo serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.




The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as nef assets. Qver time, increases or decreases in net assets
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or
deteriorating,

The starement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a signification portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general
government, public safety, transportation, economic development, and culture and recreation. The
business-type activities of the City include solid waste, water/sewer utility, reclaimed water,
stormwater utility, a marina operation, and a golf course,

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Dunedin, Florida itself, but
also the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) (known as the primary government). Although
the CRA is legally separate, it is financially accountable to the City. The City Commission also
serves as the governing body for the CRA.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages B-2 and B-3 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting io ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s
near-term financing requirements.
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Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund staternent
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains sixteen individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and the One Cent Sales Tax Fund, both of which
ar¢ considered to be major funds. Data from the other fourteen governmental funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison
statements are provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages B-4 — B-9 of this report.

Praprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enrerprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its solid waste, water/sewer
utility, reclaimed water, stormwater utility, marina operations, and golf course. /nternal service
funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The
City uses internal service funds to account for vehicle maintenance, building maintenance and self-
insurance functions. All three services have been allocated between governmental and business-type
activities based on contnbution rates within the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information on each
enterprise activity, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City. Conversely, the three
internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprictary fund
financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages B-10 — B-15 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statement because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs.
The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for propnietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages B-16 — B-17 of this report.

A-5



Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be
found on pages C-1 — C-51 of this report.

Other information

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds,
internal service funds and fiduciary funds are presented immediately following the Notes to the
Financtal Statementis. Fund statements (combining and individual fund statements) can be found on
pages D-1 - D-31 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial

position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $106,253,893 at the close of the most
recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City’s net assets {69.6%) reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, improvements other than buildings, and machinery and
equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses
these capital assets to provide service to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Agsets:

Current and other assets

Capital assets
Total assets
Liabilities:

Current and other liabilities

Long-term liabilities outstanding:

Due within ¢ne year
Due m more than one ygar

Total habilities
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, nel of
related debt

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net asscts

City of Dunedin, Florida’s Net Assets

September 30, 2006 and 2005

Governmental Business-type
Activities Achyvities Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 005
£27,173,456 $31,980,320 12,774,362 $13,438.655 40,147,818  § 45,418,975
56,252,536 45,182,119 57,560,540 59,002,987 113,813,078 104,185,106
83,625,992 77,162,439 70,334,902 72,441,642 153,960,894 149,404,081
2,740,780 1,902,668 2,510,630 2,348,560 5,251,410 4,251,228
2459978413 1,899,994 1,391,934 1,358,666 6,389,347 3,258,660
23,683,538 26,072,100 12,382,706 13,668,644 36,066,244 19,740,744
31,421,731 29,874,762 16,285,270 17,375,870 47,707,001 47,253,632
29,656,802 19,580,030 44,330,427 46,477,869 73,987,229 66,057 899
1,551,162 11,747,673 4,677,025 4,443 428 6,228,187 16,191,101
20,996,297 15,959,974 5,042,180 4,144,475 26038477 20,104,449
522042601 $47.287,677 % 54,040,632 $ 56,065,772 £106,253,853  $102,351,449

An additional portion of the City’s net assets (5.9%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets $26,038,477
{24.5%) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categortes
of net assets, both for the City as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type

activities. The same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

Change in Net Assets

The following table reflects the changes in net assets for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006

and 2005:
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City of Dunedin, Florida
Net Assets Changs
September 30, 2006 and 2005

Revenueas:

Program Revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Propeny 1axes
Other taxes
Grants and contnbutions not
restricted 17 specific pregrams
Other
Total revenues

Expenses:

General government
Public safety

Physical environment
Transportation
Econcmic environmeant
Cuiture and recreation
Interest on lang-term debt
Solid waste
Water/Sewer utility
Reclaimed water
Stormwater utility
Marina

Golf course

Total expenses

fncrease in net assets before transfars

Trensfers

Incraase in net assets

Net assets October 1

Net assets September 30

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
$ 5514108 $ 4731225 § 21,323,934 $ 20188223 § 26838042 § 24,919,448
543,267 588,149 0 2,849 543,267 590,998
1,375,691 3,664,873 316,281 288,127 1,691,972 3,553,000

0
8,844,774 7,662,303 8,844,774 7,662,303
14,065,359 13,769,345 14,065,359 13,769,345
0

0 21,397 0 21,397
851,661 248,678 332,647 390,224 1,184,298 638,902
31,194,860  30,685970 21972852 20,869,423 53,167,712 51,555,283
2,489,508 2,177,359 2,489,508 2,177,359
11,453,183 11,287,223 11.453,193 11,287,223
650 834 650 834
2,125,973 2,258,259 2,125,973 2,258,259
58,935 88,207 58,935 88,207
9,000,384 9,559,059 9,009,384 9,559,059
1,085,875 837.648 1,085,875 837,648
4,619,519 5,156,394 4619519 5.156,394
14,490,880 14,197,584 14,490,880 14,197,534
1,622,107 1,478,475 1,622,107 1,478.475
1,195,132 1,207,654 1,196,132 1,207,654
432,949 353,576 432349 353.578
682,164 595,229 682,164 595,229
26223518 26208589 23043750 22988912 49,267,268 49,197,501
4,971,342 4477381 (1,070,898}  {2.119,489) 3,900,444 2,357,892
{54,758) (561,305) 54,758 561,305 0 0
4,916,584 3,916,076  {1.016,140) (1,558,184} 3.900,444 2,357,892
47,287,677 43371601 55065772 56,623,956 102,353 449 99,995,557

§ 52204261 § 47287677 § 54,049,632 § 55085772 %

106,253893 % 102,353,449
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The City’s total revenues increased $1,612,319 (3.1%) while total expenses increased $69,767
(.1%). Apphcable to total revenues, property taxes increased $1,182,471, charges for services
increased 31,918,594 and capital grants and contributions decreased $2,261,028. As to total
expenses, general grants increased $312,150, public safety increased $165,970, culture and
recreation decreased $549,675, solid waste decreased $536,875 and utilities increased $293,296.
The analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental and business-type
activities in further detail,

Governmental activities

Total revenues for governmental activities increased $508,890 (1.7%). The major factors were:

» (Capital grants and contributions decreased $2,289,182 (62.5%) reflecting principal grant funding
received for the MLK recreation center in the prior year.

» Property taxes increased by $1,182,471 (15.4%) during the year primarily due to annexations,
new construction and increases in property tax values.

= Charges for services increased $782,883 (16.5%).

Total expenses increased $14,929 (.1%), reflecting increases in general government ($312,150),
public safety (§165,970), interest on debt ($248,227) offset by a decrease in culture and recreation
($549,675).

Business-type activities.

Total revenues for business-type activities increased $1,103,429 (5.3%), primarily in charges for
services.

»  Solid waste charges for services increased $269,794, utilities increased $434,573, and reclaimed
water administration and stormwater increased $318,462 and $302,304, respectively.

»  Total capital grants and contributions for business-type activities increased by $28,154. Ofthis
total, water/sewer utility impact fees, which are linked directly to new construction, increased
$84,909 during the current fiscal year. Contributions from reclaimed water customers declined
$16,755.

Total expenses for business-type activities increased $54,838 (.2%). Water and sewer utility
expenses and reclaimed water expenses increased $569,277 and $124,315 respectively, offset by a
decline in solid waste expenses of $440,682.

Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve asa
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useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $20,052,482, a decrease of $5,395,286 in comparison with the prior year reflecting
completion of the new community center. Reserved fund balance indicates resources that are not
available for new spending because they have already been committed 1) to liquidate contracts and
purchase orders of the prior period ($36,198), 2) to purchase capital assets ($423,505), 3) to generate
income to pay for future utility costs ($890,928), 4) to generate income to pay for perpetual care of
the municipal cemetery ($180,369), and 6) for a variety of other restricted purposes ($219,169). The
remainder of the fund balance (318,302,313) is unreserved fund baiance, which is available for
spending at the City’s discretion.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $7,283,320, while total fund balance reached was
$8,555,299. As a measure of this fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare the unallocated and
undesignated fund balance to total fund expenditures (including transfers out) which is 21.6%

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased by $711,092 (9.1%) during the current fiscal
year. Key factors in this increase are as follows:

» Total revenues increased $2,207,047 (5.3%) with the major impact coming from an increase in
property tax revenue of $1,039,375.

Total expenses increased $862,819 (3.7%). Increases by function were general government
$353,923, public safety $192,597, and culture and recreation $312,160.

The One Cent Sales Tax Fund has a total fund balance of $5,208,419, an increase during the year of
$1,213,082. The major expenditures this fiscal year from the One Cent Sales Tax Fund were the
South Douglas final phase ($206,474), First Baptist Church ($600,000) and annual debt service
($828,684).

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.  All of the City’s enterpnse funds are
considered major funds: Solid Waste, Water/Sewer Utility, Reclaimed Water, Stormwater Utility,
Marina, and Golf Course.

Unrestricted net assets of the Solid Waste Fund at fiscal year-end amounted to $563,514, an increase
from prior year of $27,034 (5.0%). Operating expenses decreased $440,682 (8.5%), primanly
reflecting the costs experienced in fiscal year 2005 for contracted hurricane debris removal.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water/Sewer Utility Fund at fiscal year-end amounted to $2,164,476.

Total net assets decreased from the prior year by $1,302,104 (4.1%). Operating revenues increased
$482,633, while operating expenses lncreased $569,277.
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Unrestricted net assets of the Reclaimed Water Fund at fiscal year-end amounted to $1,354,288.
Total net assets decreased during the year by $358,351 (2.3%). Operating revenues increased
$318,471, while operating expenses increased $124,315 as compared to prior year. Transfers in
increased $352,000.

Unrestricted net assets of the Stormwater Utility Fund at fiscal year-end amounted to $554,882. The
increase in total net assets was $428,923 (10.8%). Operating revenues increased $300,921, while
operating expenses increased $12,660.

Unrestricted net assets of the Marina Fund at the end of the year amounted to $152,235. Total net
assets at year-end were $1,733,574. Revenues increased $22,056 while expenses increased $81,213,

The Golf Course Fund ended the year with net assets of $1,129,608, a slight decrease from prior year
of $28,101. Revenues increased $88,254 with an increase in operating expenses of $85,691.
Transfers in decreased $377,317.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

As detailed on page B-8, actual total revenues exceeded budgetary estimates by $306,380 (1.2%).
Major components of this variance were increases in franchise taxes with $292,914, charges for
services with $119,481, and investment earnings with $209,276, offset by a decrease 0f $356,904 in
utility service taxes. Actual total expenditures were below budgetary estimates by $87,013 (0.4%).
Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of September 30, 2006, amounted to $113,813,076 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This mvestment in capital assets includes land, buildings, infrastructure, improvements other than
buildings, and machinery and equipment.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

» The City continued the construction of the new $9.8 million Community Center. This project
was completed on December 1, 2006.

s The City completed design of a new skateboard park at the Martin Luther King, Jr. recreation
center. The City anticipates having the approximately $542,000 park constructed by June, 2007.

= The City began the process of designing various improvements to Edgewater Park, estimated at
$450,000.
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City of Dunedin, Florida®s Capital Assets (net of depreciation)

September 30, 2006 and 2005

Total

2006 005

$11,358.411 $ 7458411
25,154 209 26,906,417
831,250 848,750
61,035,585 61,434,320
6,298,865 6,130,813

9.134.696 1,406,395

Govemnrmental Business-type
Activities Activities
2006 2005 2006 2005
Land $9,979,515  $6,079,515 $ 1,3788% $ 1,378,896
Buildings 19,629,369 20,670,050 5,524,900 6,236,367
Infrastructure 831,250 848,750 - -
Improvements other than buildings 11,714,808 11,067,486 49,320,777 50,366,834
Machinery and equipment 5,451,131 5,354,368 847,734 776,345
Construction in progress 8,646,463 1,161,950 488233 _ 244445
Total £56,252,536  $45.182,119 $57.560.590  $£39.002.987  §113.813.076¢ $104,185.106

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in note IV.A .4 on pages C-19 -
C-24 of this report.

Debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total debt outstanding of $37,885,141. Of
this amount, there was $911,361 in capital leases and $629,795 in special assessment debt for which
the City is liable in the event of default by the property owners subject to the assessment. The
remainder of the City’s debt, $36,343,985 represented bonds secured by specified revenue sources
(i.e., revenue bonds).

Capital Leases

City of Dunedin, Florida’s Qutstanding Debt

September 30, 2006 and 2005

Special assessment debt with

Revenue bonds

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
$ 911,361 § 1,651.020 § -8 - % 911361 § 1,651,020
governmental commitment 133,792 200,688 496,003 566,301 629,795 766.989
22834373 23951069 13509612  14,727.981 36343985  38,679.050
$23.879.526 $25,802,777 $14,005615 315,294,282 $37,885,14] $41,097,059

Total



In the current fiscal year, the City's debt decreased by $3,211,918 (7.8%), primarily reflecting debt
principal payments.

The City’s Financial Management Policies provide the following limits for the amount of debt the
City may issue:

» The City’s overall outstanding ratio of total annual general government debt service exclusive of
enterprise fund, intemal service fund and special assessment debt service to total annual general
govermnment revenue shall not exceed 12.5%; the City's current ratio is 6.65%.

* The City’s maximum ratio of outstanding capital debt to the property tax base shall not exceed
20%,; the City ‘s current ratio is 1.9%.

» The City’s use of revenue bonds may be 100% of total debt; the City's current ratio is 95.9%.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note IV.B on pages C-26 - C-38
of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

s The unemployment rate for the City of Dunedin for December 2006 was 2.6%, a dccrease of
1.0% from a year ago. The rate for Pinellas County for December 2006 was 2.8%.

» The City is substantially built out thereby minimizing any major growth impacts.
These factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for fiscal year 2007.

The City’s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year
2006-07 budget, including tax rates and fees that will be charged for the business-type activities.

As a result of the rate study completed in fiscal year 2006 for the Water and Sewer Fund, an
additional 5.15% rate increase will occur in fiscal 2007, over the previously approved increase.

Current property tax revenues are based on the current millage rate of 4.425. This rate is 17.3%
less than it was in fiscal year 1994-5 when it was 5.350 mills. Property tax revenues, franchise
fees, utility taxes and available cash reserves will be used to fund the current programs in fiscal
year 2007.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to previde a general overview of the City of Dunedin, Florida’s
finances for all those with an interest in the City’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to M. Earl Sanders, CPA, Finance Director, City of Dunedin, 750 Milwaukce Avenue,
Dunedin, Florida, 34698. The report is also available on the City’s website at Dunedingov.com.
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City of Dunedin, Flerlda
Statement of Net Assols
September 30, 2006

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net of
allowance for doubtiul accounts
Internal balances
Due from other governments
inventories
Prepaid items
Accrued interest receivable
Deposits
Advances to other funds
Restricted assets:
Temporarily restricteg:
Cash and cash equivalents
Intarest receivable
Charges receivable
Defetred charges
Capital azsets, net of accumuiated
depreciation
Lang
Buildings
Infrastruciure
Improvemerts other than buildings
Machinery amd equipment
Construction in progress
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and ather
current liabilities
Accrued interes! payable
Deferred revenue
Due to other governments
Due to gther funds
Liabilities payabie from restricted assels
Nonturrent labilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than ane year
Total liabitities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assels,
net of related deb!
Restricted for:
Public safety programs
Capitat asset replacement
Strest lights
Debt service
Perpetual care
Unrestricted
Total net assets

The sccompanying notes are an inlegral pan of these financial statements

Governmental Businesa-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 25369410 $ 3,468,272 $ 28,837682
633,666 2,535,677 3,173,343
{422,930) 422 930 -
1,034,168 58,545 1,093,113
88,205 701,979 800,184
20,048 4,293 24,339
122,504 28.612 151,116
40,650 650 41,300
162,809 - 162,809
313410 1,965,648 2,279,058
1,518 - 1,518
- 3,369,432 3,365,432
- 213,824 213,924
9,979,515 1,378,896 11,358,411
19,629 368 5,524,900 25,154,269
831,250 - 831,250
11,714,808 49,320,777 61,035 585
5451 131 847,734 6,298,865
8,646,463 458,233 9,134,656
§ 083,625,992 $ 70.334,902 $ 153,960,854
§ 2135418 $ 746,963 $ 2882379
360,697 336,914 697,611
164,258 - 184,258
80,409 - B0,408
- 161,410 161,410
- 1,265,343 1,265,343
4,997,413 1,391,934 6,389,347
23,683,538 12,382,706 36,066,244
31,421,731 16,285,270 47,707,001
29,656,802 44,330,427 73,987,229
56,360 - 56,360
423,506 1,163 484 1,586,989
890,928 - 890,928
14,928 3,513,541 31,628,469
180,365 - 180,369
20,681,369 5,042,180 25,723,549
$ 52,204,261 $ 54,049,632 $ 106,253,893
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City of Dunedin, Florlda
Statement of Activities

For the Flscal Year Ended September 30, 2406

Functlons/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental activities:

General govemment
Public safety
Physical environment
Transporiaton
Economic environment
Culture and recreation
interest on Iong-term debt

Total govemmental activiies

Business-type activities.
Solid waste
Water/Sewer utility
Reclaimed water
Stormwater ulility
Marina
Galf course
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Program Revenues

Net (Expensa) Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

Operating Captltal Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Govemmental Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions Cantributions Activities Activitles Total
$ 2489508 § - 3 - 5 - 5 {2.489508) $ - $ (2489 508B)
11,453,193 2,837,047 58 431 26 825 {8,530,920) - 8,530,520}
650 - - - {650) - {650)
2,125 873 - 101,884 453 711 {1,5%70,378) - (1,570,278)
58935 130,241 43678 - 144,984 - 114,884
9,009,384 2,548, B50 339,274 895,155 {5.22B,1C5) - {5.228,10%)
1.085.875 - - (1,085,B75) - (1,0B5,875)
26,223,514 5514,108 543 267 1,375,691 (18,790,452) - {18,70D.452)
4619,519 4,680412 - - - 60,893 60,893
14,490,580 13 371,989 - 202,836 {816,055) {916,055}
1,622,107 663,878 - 113,445 - {844.784) (B44.784)
1186132 1,628,155 - - 432,023 432,022
432 949 409,465 - - (23 484) (23,484)
682,164 570,035 - - - {112.129) (112129)
23,043,750 21,323.924 - 316,281 - {4,403 535) (1,403 535)
$ 49,267 268 $ 26,838,042 5 543 267 $ 1891872 {18,790,452) (1,403,535) (20.193,987)
Proparty taxes 8,844.774 - B.B44,774
Utility service taxes 4,253,827 - 4,253,827
Infrastucture sales surfax 3.603,251 - 3,803,251
Half cent sakes 1ax 2.178,564 - 2 178,564
Franchise taxes 25618,432 - 2618,432
State revenue sharing 1411285 - 1.411,285
Unrestricted investment eamings 825,778 332,637 1,158,413
Loss an sale of capital assets 25,885 - 25.88%
Transfers (54.758) 54,758 -
Total general revenues and transfers 23,707,038 387,395 24,094 431
Change in net assets 4,916,584 (1,016,140} 3,900 444
Net Assets - beginning 47.287 677 55,065,772 102,353, 449
Net - Assets - ending $ 52204261 $ 54049632 § 106,253,893

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of these financial stalements




City of DunedIn, Florida

Balance Sheat for Governmental Funds

September 30, 2006

Other Total
Ganaral One Cant Governmanta) Governmental
Fund Sales Tax Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7935342 3 4721908 § 7400162  § 20,057.413
Accounts recervable, net of
allowsnce for doubtful accounts 526,491 . 32,668 559,559
Due from other governments 422 860 583,576 27.730 1,094,168
Inventanes 3244 - - 31244
Prepaid items 18,364 - 882 20,046
Accrued inmteresl receivable 38,448 23.086 15,170 96,704
Deposits 150 - 500 €650
Advances to other funds 108,227 - 54 582 162,809
Restncied assets
Temporarly restricted:
Cash and cash equivalents - - 313,410 33410
Accrued interast receivable - - 1,618 1,548
Toal assets $ 9,054,526 ¥ 5,328,573 3 7,940,529 $ 22323628
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilties
Accounis payable $ 151,289 $ 31,954 % 997,735 $ 1,182,983
Cantracts payable - BB, 145 495 458 585,653
Accrued salanes payable 133,568 - - 133,568
Deposits payable 3,135 - 1,000 4,135
Deferred revenue 90,151 - - 90,151
Due 1o other governments 944 - 153,572 154 516
Other current liabilities 120,140 - - 120,140
Total liabilities 498227 120,154 1,651,765 2,271,146
Fund Balances:
Reserved for
Encumbrances 36,198 - - 36,198
Advances 108,227 - 54 582 162,808
fublic safety programs 56,257 - 103 56360
Cagpital projects - - 423 505 423 505
Street lights 890,928 - - 890,928
Perpetual care nonexpendable 180,369 - - 180,369
Lnreserved, reponed In;
General fund 7,283,320 - - 7,283,320
One cent sales tax fund - 5,208,419 - 5.208.41%
Special revenue funds - - 2,265 070 2,265,070
Capital projects funds - - 3,545,504 3,545,504
Total fund balances 8,555,299 5208419 €,288,764 20,052,482
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 9,054,528 $ 5328573 $  7.840.529
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assels are
different because:
Capital assets used in govemmental gotivities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 51,673,717
internal service funds are used by management to charge the tosts of
fleet and facility management and insurance to individyal funds. The
assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are inciuded in
govemnmental activities in the statement of nat asss!s. T.735321

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and accrued interest,
are nat due and payable in the curent period and therefore are
not repotted in the funds.

Net assets of govammental activities

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of these fnancial statements.
B4
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City of Dunedin, Florida

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES
Taxes:

Property

Franchise

Utilty service
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fings
Investmant earnings
Rents
Contributions and donations
Other revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Ecenomic environment
Culture and recreation
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay:
Generai government
Public safety
Pnysical environment
Transportation
Economic environment
Culture and recreation
Aids and granis
Total expendiures

Excess of revenues
over {under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES [USES)
Debt proceeds
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources [uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial staleaments

Other Total
General One Cent Governmantal Governmental
Fund Sales Tax Fund Funds Funds
% 8,355,697 $ - 3 489 077 3 8,844,774
2,618,432 - - 2,618,432
4,253,827 - - 4,253,827
840,240 - - 840,240
4,083,660 3,603,251 1,137,845 8,824 756
4,775,964 - 280,545 5,066,509
229,994 - - 229,994
377431 195,983 495,764 1,068,178
323,840 - - 323,840
- - 21,974 21,974
153,837 - 389,869 543,706
26,012,822 3,799,234 2,825,074 32,637,230
3,580,832 - 18,075 3,598,907
10,705,255 - 36,235 10,741,490
- - 650 650
1,905,592 - - 1,905,992
- - 58,935 58.935
7.70D D58 - 320,579 8,020,637
4349 458,883 1,789,754 2,252,086
1,782 369,801 566,016 937,599
- 15,283 373,074 388,367
- 1,043,137 121,958 1,165,093
- 19,580 263,084 282.664
- - 4,024,553 4,024,553
- 68,665 8,010,885 8,069,550
80,000 - - 80,000
23,978,268 1,965,359 15,583,796 41,527,423
2,034,654 1,833,875 (12,758,722) (8,890,183
- - 3,900,000 3,900,000
125,000 213,375 1,954,554 2,292,929
(1,448 562} (834,168} (415,292) (2,648,022}
{1,323,562) (620,793} 5,439,262 3,454,907
711,092 1,213.082 (7.319,460) {5.395,296)
7,844,207 3,985,337 13,608,224 25,447 768
3 8,555,259 $ 5,208.419 $ 6,288,764 $ 20,052,482
B-6



City of Dunedin, Florida
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Amounts reported for gavernmental activities in the statement of activities (page B-3) are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page B-6) 3 {5,395 286)

Gavernmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital autlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Expenditures for capital assets 14,675,908
Less current year depreciation {3,549 817) 11,126,092

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources (o
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of principal
is an expenditure in the governmental funds, bul the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of nat assats.

Additions to long-term debt {3,800,000)
Principal payments 2,252 586 (1,647,014}

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reporied as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Change in compensated absences 137,789
Change in accrued inferest expense {136,194} 1,595

Internal service funds are used by management ta charge the costs of vehicle
maintenance, facility maintenance and self insurance to individual funds.
The net income (loss) of the internal service funds is reported with

governmental activities. 831,187

Change in net assets of governmental activities (page B-3) 3 4,916,584

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements



Clty of Dunedin, Flerlda
Genaral Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expendlturas, and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
QOriglnal Final Actual Amounts {Negative}
REVENUES
Taxes.
Property §  B.487,315 $ 8487315 $ 8355697 g {131,518)
Franchise 2,325,518 2325518 2,618 432 282914
Utility service 4610731 461071 4,253 B27 {356.,904)
Licenses and permits 837,528 B37 528 840,240 2712
irergavernmental 3,534,135 3834135 4 083 B0 148 525
Charges for services 4 656,483 4 B56 4B 4,775 964 119,481
Fines 221,825 221,825 226 954 8,168
investment earnings 168,155 168,155 377 431 208,278
Rents 384,352 384,352 323,840 (60.512)
Other revenue 80,500 80,500 153,837 73337
Total ravenues 25,706 542 25706, 542 26,012,922 36,280
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government,
City commigsion 201,053 201,053 301,802 {100,745)
City manager 267,835 267,935 221,214 46,721
Legal 150,129 150,128 165,976 (15,847}
City clerk 401,866 401,866 370,511 31,355
Finance 749,380 749,380 742,764 6,616
Administration 1,745,338 1,745,338 1,778,585 {33,227}
Total general government 3,619,701 3,615,701 3,580,832 (65,131)
Public safety:
Law enfor¢ament 3,584,141 3.584 141 3.581 847 2,294
Fire control 5,641,840 5,941,840 5728182 213,658
Community services 1,479,887 1479887 1,395,226 84,861
Tatal public safety 11,005,868 11,005.960 10,705,255 300,613
Transpartation
Traffic cantral 1,047 758 1.047 758 923 088 124 662
Streets 982,331 802,331 962,856 {565}
Tolal transportation 2,030,089 2,030,089 1,805,892 124,097
Culture and recreation:
Library 2,147 363 2,187,383 2,104,357 83,006
Leisure senvices administration 435454 435,454 487,150 (31,696}
Recreation 2887378 2,887,378 3,045,300 (157 922
Parks 1,823,428 1,823,428 2,083,251 {159,823}
Total culture and recreaticn 7,383,623 7433823 7.700,058 (268.435)
Debt service.
Prncipal - - 4,349 (4 349)
Interest - - 1,782 (4,782)
Total debt service - - 8,131 (6,131}
Aids and grants 80,000 80,000 80,000 -
Total expenditures 24,025,281 24,065,281 23,978,268 87,013
Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures 1,681,281 1,641 261 2,034 654 353,393
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES {USES)
Transfers in 125,000 125,000 125,000
Transfers out (1,448 562) {1,448,562) {1,448 582)
Total other financing uses {1.323,562) {1,323,562) (1,323,562} -
Net change in fund balances 357,889 217,699 711,092 393,393
Fund balances - beginning 7,844 207 7.844 207 7,844,207 -
Fund balances - ending § 8,201,906 $ 8,161,906 $ 8555299 5 393,383

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements  B-8



City of Dunedin, Florida
One Cont Sales Tax Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budgat to Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative}
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues:
Infrastructure sales surtax $ 3075000 $ 3,075,000 3 3603251 $ 528,25
Miscellaneous revenues:
Interest earnings 94 213 94,213 195,983 101,770
Total revenues 3,169,213 3,169,213 3,799,234 630,021
EXPENDITURES
Capital projects:
General government 100,000 100,000 15,283 84,707
Public Safety 1,737,000 1,737,000 1,043,137 693,863
Transportation 50,000 50.000 19,580 30,420
Culture and recreation 300,000 300,000 58,665 241,335
Debt service
eringipal - . 458,883 (458,883)
Interest 403,455 403,455 369,801 33,654
Total expenditures 2,590,455 2,590,455 1,965,359 625,096
Excess of revenues over expenditures 578,758 578,758 1,833,875 1,255,117
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES)}
Transfers in 63,375 213,375 213,375 -
Transfers out {120,000) (600,000) {834,168} {234,168)
Total olher financing uses {56,625) (386,625) {620,793} {234,168)
Net change in fund balances 522,133 192,133 1,213,082 1,020,949
Fund balances - beginning 3,995,337 3,985 337 3,995,337 -
Fund balances - ending $ 4517470 3 4187470 $ 5208419 $ 1,020,849

The accompanying notes are an integral parl of these financial statements.
B-9



City of Dunedin, Florida
Statement of Net Assets
Propristary Funds
September 10, 2006

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts recevable, net of
allowance for uncallectibles
AssessmentsAens receivable, net of
alkrwance for uncollectibles
Due from other govemments
Inventaries
Prepaid items
Interest receivable
Deposits

Total cument assets

Nencurment assets:
tl::l Resfricted cash, cash equivalents, and
= imvasiments:
Customer deposits
Impact fees

Charges receivable

Tatal restricted assets
Deferred charges
Capital assets.
Land
Butklings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, nel of
accumulated deprecation
Total nengurrent assets

Total assets

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Internal
Solid WateriSewar Reclaimed Stormwater Golf Service
Waste LHility Water Uility Marina Course Total Funds
3 236,096 $ 954,705 -3 1,243,081 % 38D B72 ] 652,050 $ 1,468 -] 3,468,272 § 9,311,987
644,186 1,329,891 70,796 255,184 9.561 709 2,310,347 -
13,760 215,570 - - - - 226,330 -
28153 Q792 - - - 58,845 -
B26,327 80,034 - 15618 701,979 94,961
- 3,311 - - - G2 4,293 -
1,140 16,214 6,063 1,919 3.188 1) 28,612 25.800
- . - - 650 650 40,000
523,335 3,176,910 1,379,874 f37 975 664,817 19,417 6,802,428 5472758
- 1,169,352 - - - - 1,169,352 -
- 756,296 - - - - 796,286 -
- - 3,359,422 - - - 3,360,432 -
- 1,965 648 3,369,432 - - - 5,335,080 -
- 199,104 8,100 6,720 - - 213,824 -
- 305,364 - - - 1,073 532 1,378,896 -
333,053 15,538,893 - 2,000 36,589 92473 16,003,008 1.437 800
5,837 83,875,134 20,607,068 5,832 344 1,848,553 183,212 924531148 4744
V79,842 1,477 602 118812 B9 .850 6,313 23,148 2905777 10,154,378
- 46,151 33,541 381,567 - 26974 488 233 31,695
(805,521) {42,858, 293) {8,543 854) {2,111,832) {849,326) (99.586) (55,268,522} {7.049,958)
313,201 38,385,051 12,215,467 4,203,938 1.143,129 1,299,753 57,560,540 4,578,759
373.201 40,549,803 15,592,999 4,210,658 1,143,129 1,298,753 53,109 544 4 578,758
5 1,236,536 F 43,726,713 § 16972973 % 4,848,634 3 1,807,846 $ 1,319,170 3 69911972 $ 10051517

The accompanying fiotes are an interral part of these financial statements.



TEFBPOVS §

‘SlUdwee)s |epueuy 95311 10 wed jesfau ue aue sajou BulAuediuoooe By )

SAPANDE SOUA)-S5IUISNY JO SIFSER JaN

spuny asUdiaiua O PSS SPUANDE BUNY SIAIDS [RLIAJUS JO UOLEPIOSUCS 344 10Dl O] JuaiLsnipy

aEs'zey
15Z'ast's § Z0L'629'cG gog'sZL'L % pIG'ECLL B JEG'EBEY & LZ2BLL'SE & Lpr'eoE'0E § SL2'ess
182498 0SZ'BLOY {svL'021) 5ET'Z51 789'v5S g8Z'b5e’ L ¥ PIL'E PLG'EOG

- LPGELSE - - - BIL'EYE'E £9L'e9l -

- rar'eal'l - 0LT'REY - - piZ'STs -
02¥'S8E'Y Fradusia gy £52'66Z'} 6ZL'EFL'L Ssl'epR'e S59°5L¥ 0L tER'PLE IZ LOZ'ELE
90Z CAE'L 02Z'59Z'91 299681 Z0've 1BE'BFY 262°eCH’L 982'36C°C) 1z8'65¢
a6¥'88'L 90L'ZRE'ZL 809’y 090'8 I AN AN 9L0'PES' £40'98Z°01 605'9LE
22’509 - - - - - - -
$96'69T vt LRg 809't 090" ¥80'81 ZILTL 96¢'1Z9 BDS'9Z
69Z'E6Z - - - - - - -

- G8Z'L0S'L L - - ZY¥E'SLE rZ'LES'L 649'¢09'G -

- 161'v66'Z - Sr0'03 Tre'vr LEs'vel £82'¥B5'C -

- eG0' LT - - - £56'G) oob'Lt -

- D6Z'8EZL - G00'DE ) - - SHZ'RILL -

- vIE'9EE - - {69'6 00’52 210°T0E -

- ¥E6'LEE') - - S¥LSe BOE'EST JZY'EaLL -
892'¥EL £.£'806 G5 FaL 29Z'9 GLL'LS Ve 4 o0t LLY Zle'erl

- oLp'i8l OL¥ L3I - - - - -
£45°065 - - - - - - -
a52'sz . - - - - - -
iP08L LyR0f ovs'Z gae'l Si0'p 06l £76'4S oBT'El

- 20¢'95 292t - - 2400 82018 -
06808 $ 562'609 $ BELBL 3 Hi6'P 3 KQL'LS $ €59'81 $ 05F'99E % Zea'oel

spund 9101 a8Inon BupeR Apn I3YEAp Annn AISTAN

BAIBG HoO JIBMULIONIS P28y 13MIGIDIEA plog

1ewsaju)

Spuny sy - saAY adAy-ssauisng

[SEL-RETT T
paRmsaIIn
INALDS JRP JO) PRIOLNERY
S1assE [ENdE0 1) pSISoN
192 pIlefal JO 19U ‘Sleese [epded u pajsasy|
SL3ISSY 1IN

saqaey (mol

S2QQEY JU2UNIUCU o)
SAMNIGEN SUNeD
580Uasge pajesuadwo]
ajgefed sasea jepden
Buipunjs) uo inowe pausjap
PUE £JUNDOSID PIZILOWIE
10 13U ‘BRRARD SPUGY SNUSADYH
sagigel JuaunIuon

519558 PAlILSaL Wy
aqeded SaNIE WUSUND 1€10)
aiqeded siisodag
qeAed sUSOIBE 1BWOISNT
@IgeArd 1saialul paruooy
vigesed spuoq anuaasy
S13SSE PAOLsa
wayy sigeied sampjigel) luaunly
SOMIGE) WILNG €01
SPUn JAYIO \Wa SIOUBADY
AN - speded sases ende)
qeAed jSauslul panooy
atgeded saLees panooy
sigeded speive)
a|qeded gjunocoay
‘sayyge| JudLng
S3nEavin

{panugyuoa}

9002 '0¢ Joquaydag
spuny Aejaudoig
SIPSSV JaN JO JUSWNRG
epUol3 ‘uIpsuNng Jo AN

B-11



City of Dunedin, Florlda

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assels

Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended Seplamber 30, 2006

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Internal
Solid Warter/Sewer Reclaimad Stormwater Golf Service
Waste Ltllity Water Utitity Marina Course Total Funds
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $§ 4554479 5 13,079,152 3 663,659 $ 1628145 5 - - 563,182 $ 20.488827 6.782,088
QOther operating revenue 126,933 292,837 9_ 10 409 455 6,853 835,107 220,103
Taotal aperating revenues 4,680,412 13,371,988 663 878 1,628 155 400,465 670,035 21,323,534 7,002,191
QOperating expenses:
Personal services 1,374,085 5,119 368 234 459 366,473 132,400 243,841 7,460,626 1671517
Supplies and services 3,248 980 5,712,332 290,432 632,748 117,108 428 724 10,430,324 3,712,723
Depreciation 138,516 3.227.881 1,045 356 212,314 189,688 21,247 4,835,002 1,085,315
Total operating expenses 4,761,681 14,059,581 1,570,247 1,201,535 439,166 693,812 22725952 6,469,555
Operating income (loss) (81.169) (887 592) (908,369) 426,620 (29,731} (123,777} {1.402.018) 532,626
= Nonoperatng revenues (expenses);
. invesiment eamngs 12,509 219,880 489,756 20,425 1,374 2,688 332637 248 928
b Interestfamontization expense - {555,998} (58,183) {18,122} - - (632,303) (12,082)
Gain (lpss) on disposal of capial assets - - - - - - - 25,885
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) 12,509 {336,118) {8,427) 2303 27,379 2,688 (299 666) 262,731
Income before contributions and transfers (68,660) {1.023.710) (914,796} 428,923 {2,352 {121.069) (1,701,684) 795 367
Contributions - special asseéssments/charges - - 113,445 - - - 113,445 -
Contribufons - impact fees - 202,836 - - - - 202,836 -
Transfers in ¢ (out) - (481,230) 443,000 - - 92988 54,758 355,685
Transfers out - - - - - - - [5.358)
Change in net assets (68 6ED) (1,302 104} {358,351} 428,923 {2.3532) (28,101) (1,330,645} 1,145,702
Tatal net assels - beginning 945,375 31,670,551 15,478,072 3,969,714 1,735,926 1,157,709 7,012,549
Total net assets - ending % 876,71% § 30,368 447 5 1511972 3 4,398,637 % 1,733,574 § 1,124 608 8,156,251
Adjusimert ta reflect the consaiidation of internal service fund aclivities
ralated 1o enterprise funds 314,505

Change in rel assets of pusiness-type activities (page B-3)

The accompanying noles are an integrai part of these financal statements.

$  {1.016.140)
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City of Dunedin, Florida
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Receipis trom customers
Paymenis (¢ suppliers
Payments to employees
COther operating revenues
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in
Net cash provided by {used tor}
noncapilal financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets
Principal paid on capital det
Interest paid on capital deit
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Capital contributions from private sources
Met cash used far capital and
related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Investment eamings
Met cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - Oclaber 1

Cash and cash equivalents - September 30

Business-type Activitles - Enterprise Funds

Intemal
Solld Water/Sewer Reclaimed Stormwater Golf Service
Waste Utiiity Water Utility Marina Course Total Funds
4,613,242 $ 13,121,880 -3 823,765 % 1595589 $ 8,350 3 563,195 % 20626021 $ B,B72700
{3,241,664) {5,797,935) {300,451} {605,129) (120.509) (427,000} {10,492,698) (3,908,799)
{1,409,710) [5.120,419) {232,253) {361 845) {129,830} (243 420) (7,497 546} {1.663,778)
125933 292,837 9 10 409 465 5853 B35 107 220103
{12,199 2,496,363 251,070 B28.615 167,407 {100,372) 3,470 884 1,520,226
- (481,230) 443,000 - - 92,988 54 758 355,665
- (481,230} 443 000 - - 92 988 54758 350,335
(42,822) (2,458,011) {125.270) (644 184} (122.268) {3,392,555) (1,029.914)
- (938,621) (253,380} (29,625) - - {1.221,615) {719,988)
- (577,074) (32,983) (18,803) - - {628,860] {47,657)
- - - - - - - 25,885
- 202836 113,445 - - 316,281 -
(42,822) {3,770,870) [298,177) (692 612) (122,268} (4,926,749} (1.771,674)
12,087 215,183 45 680 19,620 25,386 3,033 320,989 236,119
12,087 215,163 45 680 18,620 25,388 3,033 320,989 236,119
{42,934) (1,540,554) 481,573 (44,377} 192.793 {128,619} (1.080,118) 335,006
279,030 4 460,907 761,508 425249 459,257 128,087 6,514 038 4 976,991
236 096 % 2,920,353 3 1,243,081 3 380,872 ] 652,050 5 1,468 $ 5,433,920 $ 5,311,997

The accompanying nates are an integral pan of these financial statements.



. Reconcillation of operating Income {loss} to
net cash provided by {used in) operating

-8

City of Dunedin, Florida
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprigtary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

activities:
Operating income ({loss}
Adjustments to reconcile operaling

income {loss) to net cash provided by

(used in) operating activites.

Depreciation

(Increase} decrease n
Accounts receivable

Decrease in due from other governments

Inventories

Due from other govermments

Prepaid tems

Deferred charges
Increase (decrease) in

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deposits

Due to ather funds

Compensated absences

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by {used in} operating activities

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Internal
Solid Water/Sewer Reclalmed Stormwater Golt Service
Waste Utility Water Uity Marina Course Total Funds
81,169 (687.592) $ {906,369 § 426,620 3 (26.731) (123777) § {(1402018) % 532,636
138,516 3,227,861 1,045,356 212,314 185,688 21,247 4,835,002 1,085 315
{33.095) (995} 159,806 (34.485) (2.556) 13 B8, 775 -
- - - - - - 90,612
- {181,391) {18,148) - - {3,426) (202,966} {B.755)
(8.142) 5,391 - 1,932 - - (819} -
- §23 - 68 - {982) {390) 184
- 74 888 - 840 - 25,728 -
7.316 70,377 8,130 26700 {3,401) 5,132 115.254 (100,276}
(7.551} 2,163 97 {557) 69 {46) {5.885) 6§16
- g 3az - 10,806 - 45,238 -
- - - - - - - (87.229)
{28,074) {3.214) 2109 {4,775} 2,432 467 {31,055} 7.123
68970 3,183,555 4,197,435 201 995 197,138 23,405 4 872302 987 590
(12,199) § 2496363 5 241,070 $ 628,615 5 167,407 3 (100372} § 3470884 ¥ 1520226

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,



City of Dunedin, Florida
Statemant of Fiduclary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2006

Pension
Plans
ASSETS
investments $ 1B.406,587
Due from other governments 45,088
Prepaid items 793
Aceryed interest/dividends receivable 216,709
Total assets 18,670,077
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 215,727
Total liabilities 215,727
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 18454350

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
B-16



City of Dunedin, Florida
Statement of Changes in Fiduclary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
Saptember 30, 2006

Pension
Plans
ADDITIONS:
Contributions
Employer b 1,189,598
Plan members 143,030
Total contributions 1,332.628
investment earnings
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 625,733
Interest 294,455
Dividends 212,668
Total investment earnings 1,132,856
Less investment expenses (144,352)
Net investment earnings 988,504
Miscellanecus revenue 208,084
Total additions 2529216
DEDUCTIONS:
Benafits 044 237
Administrative expenses 100,814
Total deductions 1,054 051
Change in net assets 1,475,165
Net assets - beginning 16,979,185
Net assels - ending $ 18,454,350
————————— ———1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Dunedin, Flonda (the "City"}, which was founded on June 1, 1899, and incorporated under Chapter 4877,
Acts of 1899 of the State of Florida, has a population of approximately 37,000 (which includes seasonal residents) living
within an area approximating 10 square miles. The City is contiguous to the northern side of Clearwater, Florida. The
City operates under a Charter originally adopted January 6, 1926, and a Cammission-Manager form of government. The
most recent revision to the City's Charter was on April 18, 1996,

The financial staterments of the City have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
{(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 1s the standard-
setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. The GASB peniodically updates its codification of the
existing Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with subsequent GASH
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations), constitutes GAAP for governmental units. The more significant of
these accounting policies are described below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City is a Florida municipal corporation with a five member City Commission comprised of the Mayor {¢lected at
large) and four commissioners. In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential
component units {traditionally separate reporting entities) for which the City may or may not be financially accountable
and, as such, may be included within the City's Financial Statements, In accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, the
City (the primary government) is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing
board, and (1) it is able to impose its will on the organization, or (2) there is a potential for the organization to pravide
specific financial benefit to or impose specific financial burden on the City. Additionally, the primary government is
required to consider other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or
incomplete. Based on the foregoing criteria, the Community Redevelopment Agency and Firefighters’ Pension have been
mcluded in the City's financial statements in a blended presentation.

1. Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA):

The City Commuission serves as the CRA Beard. Although legally separate, the CRA is blended as a special revenue fund
type component unit into the primary government.

2. Firefighters' Pensien Fund:

The City's firefighters participate in a separate Firefighters' Pension Plan. The Plan functions for the benefit of these
employees and is governed by a five member pension buard. The pension board is composed of two employees, two City
residents, and a fifth member elected by the other four members. The City and the Plan participants are obligated to fund
all Plan costs based upon actuarial valuations. The City is authorized to establish benefit levels and to approve the
actuanrial assumptions used in the determination of contribution levels. The Plan is legally separate, bul blended as a
fiduciary fund type component unit into the primary govermment,

Complete financial statements of the above individual component units can be obtained from: Earl “Sandy™ Sanders,
CPA, Finance Director, City of Dunedin, 750 Milwaukee Avenue, Dunedin, Florida 34698,

C-1



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE1l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The City has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.” The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the
statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary govermument and its component units. For the most part, the effeci of interfund activity has been removed from
these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support,

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset
by program revenues. [Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include 1} charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular funchion or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though
the latter are excluded from the povernment-wide financial statements, Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate colunms in the fund financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied, Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the curtent period or soon enough thereafter to
pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a hability 1s
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related 1o
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and interest associated with the current fiscal periad are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the
portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to acerual as
revenue of the current period, All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the City,



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING,
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

The City reports the following major funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial sources of the general
government, except thase required to be accounted for in another fund.

The One Cent Sales Tax Fund accounts for the costs of infrastructure having a life expectancy of five (5) or more
years and is funded by proceeds from the one-cent sales surtax approved by Pinellas County, Florida voters,

The Solid Waste Fund accounts for the pravision of solid waste services to the residents of the City. All activities
necessary to the provisions of this service are accounted for in this fund.

The Water/Sewer Utility Fund accounts for the provision of water and sewer services to residents of the City, and
some County residents. All activities necessary to the provision of these services are accounted for in this fund,
including, but not limited to, administration, treatment plants and line maintenance.

The Reclaimed Water Fund accounts for the provision of services for the collection, treatment, storage, and
conveyance of reclaimed water.

The Stormwater Utility Fund accounts for the provision of services for the collection, storage, treatmment and
conveyance of stormwater for the benefit of all developed property within the City.

The Marina Fund accounts for the financing, operation and maintenance of the City marina and the associated real
property.

The Golf Course Fund accounts for the financing, operation and maintenance of the City’s golf course.
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The internal Service Funds account for building maintenance, vehicle maintenance and self insurance {risk
management) provided to other departments of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Pension Trust Funds account for the activities of the Firefighters’ Retirement Plan and the Employees Defined
Contribution Plan, which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to firefighters and non-special risk
employees hired after December 31, 1995,

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed
in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict
with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Govemments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE L. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTY
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING,
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

As a general rule the effect of the interfund activity has been ¢liminated from the government-wide financial statements,
Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City’s water and sewer funchion and various other functions of the
City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revennes reported for the various functions
concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges
provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including restricted investment
earnings. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues includes all taxes,

Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperafing items, Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the solid waste, water/sewer utility, reclaimed
water, storrnwater utility, marina, and golf course enterprise funds and of the City’s internal service funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and intemal service funds include the cost of
sales and services, adminisirative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets, All revenues and expenses not meeting
this defimition, such as water/sewer utility fund impact fees, are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

1. Deposits and investments

The City considers cash on hand, demand deposits, and bank repurchase agreements with an original maturity of 90 days
or less to be cash and cash equivalents. Inaddition, each fund’s equity in the City's investment pool has been treated as a
cash equivalent since cash may be withdrawn from the pool at any time without prior notice or penalty.

State statutes and local law authorize the City to invest in direct obligations of the U.S., Federally-supported Agencies
and Instrumentalities, Florida government investment pools, commercial paper, repurchase agreements, debt of Florida
political subdivisions, money market mutual funds, time deposits, savings accounts, mutual funds and bankers
acceptances.

All of the City's investments are stated at fair value. The fair value of these investments are determined by the funds’
share price as of September 30, 2006,

Investments for the City that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair values. Fair value is the
amount at which an investment would be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The Florida State Board of Administration Local Government Poaoled Investment Fund has met the criteria to be
considered a “2A-7 like” Investment Fund as defined by GASB Statement No. 31. Therefore, amortized cost may be
used for valuation. The fair value of the City's investment in this poel is determined by the pool’s share price (account
balance).
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. ASSETS, LTIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR FQUITY (CONTINUED)

2. Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding
balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the
govemmental activities and business-type activities are reporied in the government-wide financial staternents as “internal
balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropnation and are not expendabie available
financial resources.

Accounts receivable are recorded in the General, Special Revenue, Capital Projects, Enterprise, and Internal Service
funds. Where appropriate, an associated allowance for doubtful accounts has been established.

Utlity (water/sewer, reclaimed water, and stormwater), solid waste and marina operating revenues are generally
recognized on the basis of monthly cycle billings. The City records atility operating revenues for services delivered
during the current fiscal year which will be billed during the next fiscal year.

3 Property Taxes

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1 of each year, or as soon thereafter as
the assessment roll is certified by the County Property Appraiser. The County mails to each property owner on the
assessment rofl a notice of tax levy by the various governmental entities in the County. Taxes may be paid upon receipt
of such notice with discounts at the rate of 4%; if paid in November, 3% if paid in December, 2% if paid in January and
1% if paid in February. Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount. All unpaid taxes on real and
tangible personal property become delinquent on April 1 of the vear following the year in which the taxes were assessed.

On or before April 25 of each vear, a list of delinquent personal property tax payers is advertised. Warrants are 1ssued
directing seizure and sale of the personal property of the taxpayer if the delinquent taxes are not paid before May 1. On
or before June 1 of the following year in which taxes are assessed, liens are filed and tax certificates are sold on all real
estate parcels with outstanding taxes. These parcels are advertised once a week for four weeks prior to the tax certificate
sale, As a result of the process, the City’s delinquent or uncellected property taxes at year-end are immaterial.

The City is permitted by state law to levy taxes up to 10 mills of assessed valuation (exclusive of taxes levied for the
payment of bonds). The millage rate levied by the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 was 4.4253 mills
and budgeted for 2006-2007 at 4.0934 mills. Current tax collections for the City were approximately 93.7% of the total
tax levy.
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (CONTINUED)

4, Inventories

All City inventories are maintained on a consumption basis of accounting where items are purchased for inventory and
charged to the budgetary accounts as the iterns are consumed. Inventories held by the General Fund copsists principally
of general office, printing, traffic control and maintenance supplies. Inventories included in the Utility Fund consist of
parts held for repair and maintenance of the system. Inventories included in the Internal Service Funds consist of
maintenance parts, tires, fuels and supplies. Inventories are stated at average or weighted average cost. Appropriate
allowances have been recorded for obsolete and surplus items.

The City has elected to indicate a reservation of fund balance for all inventory held in governmental funds at the end of
the fiscal year.

5. Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit subsequent fiscal years are recorded as prepaid items. The cost
of these items are recorded as expenditures, when consumed rather than when purchased. Prepaid items are equally
offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they do not constitute “available spendable resources™ even though
they are a component of net cwrrent assets.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment are reported in the applicable govemnmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 {amount not rounded} and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation,

The City has elected o delay implementing of the retroactive recordation of infrastructure assets, such as roads, bridges,
curbs, gutters, streets and sidewalks and lighting systems, acquired prior to October 1, 2001, The implementation of that
part of GASB Statement No. 34 may be deferred until fiscal year 2007, However, beginning with the year ended
Septernber 30, 2004 any newly constructed infrastructure assets have been included in these financial statements.

The costs of normal maintenance and repatrs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are
not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets

constructed.

Propetty, plant, and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTEL SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (CONTINUED)

6. Capital Assets (Continued)
Assets Years
Buildings 50
Infrastructure 50
Building improvements 20
Improvements other than Buildings 20-40
Machinery and equipment 5-10

7. Accumulated Unused Compensated Absences

The City records the “vested portion of accumulated unused compensated absences” at the end of each fiscal year, based
on cach employee’s accumulated unused hours and rate of pay. Generally, employees use their compensated absences as
they are earned. For this reason, the accumulated unused portion as of September 30 is treated as a long-term liability,

Itis the City’s policy in its Proprietary Funds to reflect on an accrual basis the amounts of earned but unused vacation
leave and that portion of earned but unused sick leave estimated to be payable upon retirement.

With respect to the current fiscal year, management has deterrnined that no material amounts of accumulated unpaid
vacation and sick leave at the close of the year will be liquidated with expendable available resources; therefore, the
entire liability for such leave pertaining to the Governmental Funds is reflected in long-term debt.

8. Long-term obligations

In the govemment-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, tong-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as labilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprictary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of
the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issnance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the
term of the retared debt.

0, Resiricted assets

Certain proceeds of the City’s enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment,
are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use
is limited by the applicable bond covenants. The “renewal and replacement” account is used to report resources set aside
to meet unexpected contingencies or to fund asset renewals and replacements.

10. Reserves

a.  Govermmental Funds and certain Fiduciary Funds Reserves have been established for open encumbrances at year
end reflecting purchase comumitments expected to generate claims on current assets. Reserves have been established to
reflect legal restrictions which limit the City’s spending discretion. Finally, designations of unreserved fund equities
indicate City management’s tentative plans for financial resource utlization in a future period.

C-7



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTEIL SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES { CONTINUED)

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (CONTINUED)
10, Reserves (continued)

b. Debt Service Funds and Fiduciary Funds - Reserves are created to indicate a segregation of a portion of fund
balance equal to the net current assets restricted for meeting various covenants defined in the revenue bond indentures
and restricting current funds for future retirement benefits. Usage of reserves has been limited to the following items:

(H Reserves for Debt Services - restricted for future servicing of the Revenue bonds.

(3] Held in trust for pension benefits - restricted for payment of retirement benefits,
11, Deferred Revenue

Occupational licenses, certain assessments receivable, and some pledges receivable are measurable, but not available, as
of the end of the fiscal year and thus are shown as deferred revenue. The deferred revenue will be recognized as revenue
in the fiscal year that it becomes available.

12. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of monies
are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Capital Project Funds. Encumbrances
outstanding at year end are reported as reservatiops of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or
habilities.

13. Net Assets

Net assets of the government-wide and proprietary funds are categorized as invested in capital assets net of related debt,
restricted or unrestricted. The first category represents net assets related to property, plant, equipment and infrastructure,
net of unspent financing proceeds. The restricted category represents assets restricted by requirements of revenue bonds
and other externally imposed constraints or by legislation in excess of the related liabilities payable from unrestricted
assets.

E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES
1. Operating Subsidies, Grants, and Impact Fees:

Grants to proprietary funds used for construction or to finance current operations are recorded as non-operating revenue
when eamed.

Impact fees represent a capacity charge for the proportionate share of the cost of expanding, oversizing, separating or

constructing new additions to the Utility System. The City is obligated to expend these funds only to provide expanded
capacity to the system. Water and sewer impact fee revenues are classified as contributions,
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTEIL SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES (CONTINUED)
pA Interfund Transactions:

Interfund sales and purchases are accounted for as fund revenues, expenditures or expenses (as appropriate).
Transactions which constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures (expenses) initially made are recorded as
expenditures or expenses (as appropriate) in the reimbursing fund, and as reductions of the expenditures (expenses) in the
reimbursed fund. All interfund transactions except loans, reimbursements and interfund sales and purchases are
accounied for as transfers or contributions. All of the City’s interfund transfers are routine budgeted transactions between
funds.

kR Administrative Charges:

Certain administrative expenses are incurred by the General Fund on behalf of the other funds. In addition, some
administrative charges are incurred by the Utility Fund for services rendered that benefit other funds. Both the General
Fund and the Utility Fund receive payment for these services hased on a percentage allocation in accordance with
budgeted appropriations. These administrative reimbursements for the year ended September 30, 2006 are presented
below.

Reimbursements to the General Fund were charged to the following funds:

Fund Amount
Salid Waste 3 371,175
Water/Sewer Utility 1,099,053
Marina 31,109
Stormwater 111,876
Reclaimed Water 51,651
Golf 52,319
Total $ 1.717,183
Reimbursements to the Water/Sewer Utility Fund were charged to the following funds:
Fund Amount
General $ 287,096
Solid Waste 146,441
Marina 7,141
Stormwater Utility 146,217

Reclaimed Water

39.858

Total $ 626,753
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE 11 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE
AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES
BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET
AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental funds and net
assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “long-term habilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $(27,257,319) difference are as follows:

Accrued interest payable $  (335439)
Capital leases payable (27,499)
Revenue bonds payable (22,743,109)
Special assessment debt with government commitment (133,792)
Mortgage note payable (2,850,000)
Compensated absences (1,167.480)
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds 1o

arrive at net assets — government wide activities 3 (27.257.319)

B. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a reconciliation
between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net assets of governmental activities as
reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One elernent of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental
funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this $11,126,002 difference are as
follows:

Capital outlay $ 14,675,909
Depreciation expense {3.545%.R17)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances -
total governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets

af gavernmental aclivities 5 11.126,092
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE II - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE
AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF
ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of Jong-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current

financial resources of governmental funds.” Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. The details of
this ($1,647,014) difference are as follows:

Additions to long-term debt $ (3,900,000)

Principal repayments:

Revenue notes 2,166,418
Capiial leases 19,672
Special assessment _ 66,896

Net adjustent to decrease net changes in fund balances - total governmental
Jfunds 10 arrive at changes in net assets of governmental acrivities 3 (1,647,014)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “some expenses reported in the staternent of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of
this $1,595 difference is as follows:

Compensated absences $ 137,789
Accrued interest (136,194
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances — rotal governmental

Junds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities g 1,595

NOTE 111 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. THE CITY’S BUDGET POLICY IS SUMMARIZED AS FOLLOWS:

1. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all governmental
funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

2. The City Manager submits to the City Commission a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures/expenses and the means of financing them,

3. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE 01 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

A, THE CITY’S BUDGET POLICY 1S SUMMARIZED AS FOLLOWS (CONTINUED):

4. The budget is approved by the City Commission through the passage of a resolution. The level on which
expenditures/expenses may not legally exceed appropriations is the individual department/fund.

5. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The City Manager is authorized to transfer
budgeted amounts within departments, except for budget changes affecting salary line items. All salary budget
changes, as well as transfers between departments must have City Comumission approval.

6. Formal budgetary integration was employed as a management control device during the year for all budgeted funds.

B. COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCE RELATED LEGAL
AND CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS

The City met the Rate Covenant requirement stipulated in the Water and Sewer Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993,
The rate covenant requires Net Revenues to be 125% of the Bond Service Requirement. Net Revenues were 20084 of the
Bond Service Requirements for the Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2006. The indebted Enterprise Funds had
sufficient assets to make all required debt payments during the 2005-2006 Fiscal Year.

The City was in compliance with the provisions of the “Disposition of Revenue” Section of the Water and Sewer
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993,

C. ESTABLISHMENT/ELIMINATION OF FUNDS

No funds were established or eliminated during this fiscal year. The Dunedin Stadium Debt Service Fund was eliminated
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005

D. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES
OVER REVENUE IN INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

There is an excess of Expenditures over Revenue in the Solid Waste Fund, Water/Sewer Utility Fund, Reclaimed Water
Fund, Marina Fund, Golf Course Fund, Dunedin Stadium Fund, Fine Art Center Fund, Community Redevelopment
Fund, G. Koutsourias Fund, Harbor View Dredging Fund, Stadium Capital Project Fund, Caunty Gas Tax Fund, Leisure
Services Capital Improvement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund and Information Technology Project Fund. All of these
funds have sufficient undesignated fund balances as of September 30, 2006 to cover the excess expenditures.



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTEIV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
A. ASSETS
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The City of Dunedin maintains a cash and investment pootl that is available for use by all funds. Each fund’s portion of
this pool is reported in “Cash and Cash Equivalents.” Interest earned by this pool is distributed to each fund monthly
based on average month-end balances.

The City classifies its operating investment portfolio as Cash and Cash Equivalents. The City’s cash management pool
allows individual funds and subfinds to, at any time, deposit additional cash or make withdrawals without prior notice or
penalty, and thus, the City is internally managing a mutual fund which is considered by GASB to be a cash equivalent.
The investment earnings on the City's cash management poal are reported as part of the investing activity,

a. Deposits

At year end, the book balance of the City's deposits was $135,370 and the bank balance was $569,883. The difference
between the book balance and bank balance is due to outstanding checks as of September 30, 2006. The bank balance is
insured by federal depository insurance and, for the amount in excess of such federal depository insurance, by the State of
Florida’s Public Deposits Act.

Provisions of the Act require that public deposits may only be made at qualified public depositories. The Act requires
each qualified public depository to deposit with the State Treasurer eligible collateral equal to or in excess of the required
collateral as determined by the provisions of the Act. Inthe event of a failure by a qualified public depositary, losses in
excess of federal depository insurance and proceeds from the sale of the securities pledged by the defaulting depository,
are assessed against the other qualified public depositories of the same type as the depository in default.

b. Investments

The City’s investment policy and guidelines, except for pension fund assets, are defined by City ordinance. The written
investment policy was revised, by City Commission approval, on November 7, 2002. The pelicy specifies limits by
instrament and institution (within instrument) and establishes a diversified investment strategy, minimum credit quality
and authorized institutions available as counterparties.

Implementation and direction, within policy limits, is managed by the Director of Finance, with City Manager approval
required for all transactioas.

The City’s investment palicy requires fransactions to meet “payment versus delivery” perfection with secunties being
held by the City’s third party custodian on behalf of and in the name of the City. The exceptions to this policy are
overnipht repurchase agreements with the City’s primary banking institution, and investments with Florida's State Board
of Administration (SBA). Investments with the SBA may be made ar liquidated by wire on a same day basis. Based on
the SBA's investment option structure and its availability to all local governmental units, individual unit perfection is not
provided. The City has also developed a master repurchase agreement to address overnight, term and reverse repurchase
transactions and, by policy, will only consider repurchase transactions with institutions which have execuoted a similar
master repurchase agreement prior to any such transaction.



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE IV, DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

A, ASSETS (CONTINUED)
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents and [nvestments (continued)
h. [nvestments (continued)

Investments in the SBA, mutual funds and indexed {passively managed} pension accounts are not evidenced by securities
that exist in physical or book entry forrn. Investments are reporied at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at
cost, which approximates market value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the last reported sales
price. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair market values.

In addition to authorizing investment instruments, the City's policies also identify various portfolio parameters addressing
issuer diversification, term-to-maturity and liquidity.

The State Board of Administration (SBA) was established on June 21, 1928, pursuant to Chapter 14486, 1929 laws of
Florida. The Board was subsequently created as a constitutional body corporate on Janvary 1, 1943, under the provisions
of Senate Joint Resolution No. 324, 1941; approved by the electorate in November 1942. The Board is composed of the
Governor, as Chairman, the State Treasurer, as Treasurer and the State Comptroller, as Secretary, and provides the
following services by law: (1) investment of funds of the Florida Retirement System (FRS); (2) administration of debt
service funds; (3) investment of trust and agency funds; and (4} distribution of the “Second Gas Tax."

The Local Government Pooled Investment Fund is governed by Ch. 19-7 of the Florida Administrative Code, which
identifies the Rules of the State Board of Administration. These rules provide guidance and establish the general
operating procedures for the administration of the Local Government Pooled Jnvestment Fund. Additionally, the office
of the Auditor General performs the operational audit of the activities and investments of the State Board of
Admunistration.

Since the Florida SBA Local Government Pooled Investment Fund {Fund) typically owns a substantial amount of
treasury bills and notes, the Fund has utilized security lending programs to generate supplemental income, This income is
used to pay a sigmficant portion of the fees associated with the Fund which otherwise would have to be paid from regular
Fund earnings. Any residual is used to build the Fund's reserve on behalf of participants. Both of these goals have been
accomplished without impacting the regular earnings in the Fund and with no change in the Fund’s investment strategy.
The investment in the Florida SBA poel is carried at the pool’s share price at September 30, 2006.
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUFS (CONTINUED)

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED)
1. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)
b. Investments (continued):

The City’s investments for all pools are summarized and categorized under GASB 40 guidelines as follows to give an
indication of the level of credit and interest rate risk assumed by the City at September 30, 2006.

Rating
Standard Weighted
& Average
Faic Val Duration
alr value Poor’'s {In Years)
Investments:
U.5. Government s 142,792 AAA 4
Agencies )
U.S. Goverament
Instrumentalities 14,955,515 AAA .49
Florida State Board of Administration
Local Government Pooled Investment
Fund (SBA) 15,880,955 Not Rated Daily
Cash in bank 135,370 i )
Petty cash 2,108 . )
Total Investments —
cash and cash equivalents $ 31,116,740



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTEIV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)
A. ASSETS (CONTINUED)

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

b. Investments (continued);

U. 8. Government Securities are principaily composed of U.S. Treasury notes and bonds. U.S. Government Agencies
include instruments issued by Govermment National Mortgage Association (GNMA,), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp
(Freddie Mac), Federal Farm Credit Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank.

Investiments held in Pension Funds:

Investments held by the City’s Pension Trust Funds are summarized as follows:

Rating
Weighted Average
FesonTuns vie  sres  Gves
U.8. Government and Agency Securities $ 4.421,627 AAA 4.2
Corporate Equities 12,509,774 - -
Corporate Obligations 844,712 A—-AAA 5.6
Money Market _ 230474 AAA Daily
Total Pension Funds 3 18,406,587

Credit Rate Risk. Consistent wich state law and the investment guidelines for the City, the firefighters pension
plan, and the defined contribution pension plan their fixed incame investments are limited to a quality rating of
‘A’ or equivalent as rated by one or more recognized bond rating service at the time of purchase. Fixed income
investmentswhich are downgraded to ‘BAA’ or equivalent must be liquidated within a reasonable period of time
not to exceed twelve months, Fixed income investments which are downgraded below ‘BAA” shall be liquidated
immediately.

Incerest Rate Risk: The City manages its expostire to fair value losses arising from increasing rates through irs
adopted investment policies. The Ciw limirs its fixed porrfolio’s weighted average maturity ta 2.5 years.

The duration of the fixed income portfolios of the firefighters' and the defined contribution pension plans will
nor exceed that of the Lehman Brothers Aggregate Bond Index.
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NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED)

2. Receivables

CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Receivables as of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 for the City’s individual major funds and nonmajor, internal
service, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as

foilows:

Receivables:

Accounts Billed

Atcounts Unbilled
Special Assessments
Liens Receivable
Pledges Reccivable
Charges
Gross Recevables
Less: Allowance for

Uncollectibles

Net Totgl Receivables

Solid Waler/Sewer  Reclaimed  Stormwater Gulf Nonmajar

General Waste Utility Water Unhry Marina Course and Other Tota!
$ 536801 § 255785 5 578809 5§  §,543 FI10228 % 1208] § T09 0§ 32,668 $ 1,556,715
400,670 1,084,082 62,253 123,955 - - 1,670,960
. 74,107 74,107
21,760 224,589 - - . - - 246,349

536,891 678,215 1,887,480 70,796 255,184 12,081 709 106,775 3,548,131
110,000} (20,269  _ (392019 - (2,500} (374,788}
$ 526,891 § 632046 $ 1545461 5 70796 $ 25584 § 0581 0§ 709 $.106775 §317334)

As the operator of Refuse Collection, Utilities, Marina and Golf Course programs, the City grants credit to their
customers, substantially alt of whom are City residents. The allowance for uncollectible accounts in the Enterprise Funds
relates to unpaid assessments and accounts receivable.
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL, FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED)
2. Receivables (continued)

Goverumental funds report deferred revenue in conmection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be
available to liquidate liabilities of the cumrent period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recogrition in connection
with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unearned revenue
reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Tota] Unearned
Revenue For

General Harbor View Governmental
Fund Dredging Fund Funds
License fees not yet earned $ 90,151 3 - $ 90,151
Assessments receivable - 74,107 _ 74,107
Total 3 90,151 $ 74,107 $ 164,258
3 Due From Other Governments

The following amounts were due from other governments as of September 30, 2006.

Name of Govermnment AMOUNT

Pinellas County, Florida 3 6524 009
State of Flonida 307,840
Housing Authorities 73,243

City of Clearwater _ 29,076
TOTAL 1,034,168
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE IV, DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUFS (CONTINUED)

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED)

4. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 was as follows:

a. Primary Government

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in Process

Total Capital Assets not being depreciated

Capital Assels being depreciated:
Buildings

Infrasrructute

Improvements other than buildings

Machinery and equipment

Total Capital Assets being depreciated

Less Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings

Infrastructure

Improvements other than buildings

Machinery and Equipment

Total Accurnulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets being depreciated, net

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net

Beginning Ending

Balance Increase Decreasg Balance
$ 6,079,515 § 3900000 § - § 9979515
1,161,950 7484513 - 8,646,463
7,241,465 _41,384513 - 18625978
26,876,426 368,063 (358,011} 26,846,478
875,000 - 875,000
16,532,335 1,582,493 - 18,114,828
15,582 983 1,636,558 _ (435810) 16,763,031
59 .866.044 _ 3,567,114 (R313.821) 62.599.337
(6,206,376) (1,080,901} 70,168 (7,217,109}
{26,250y (17,500) - (43,750)
(5,464,849) (935,171) - (6,400,020}
10,227,915 _ (1.516.245) 432,260 (113113000
(21,925,390} (3.549. 817} 502428  _ (24.972.779)
__ 37940654 _ 17297 (331,393) 37,626,558
$ 45,182,116 § 11.40]510 § (331,393) & 56,252,536
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTEIV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED)
4, Capital assets (continued)
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 was as follows:

b. Primary Government

Beginning Ending
Balance Increase Decrease Balance

Business-type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 137889 % - % $ 1,378,896
Construction in Process 244 445 372,995 {129.207) 488,233
Total Capital Assets not being depreciated 1,623,341 372,995 (129.207) 1,867,129
Capital Assets being depreciated:
Buildings 15,921,018 81,990 - 16,003,008
Improvements other than buildings 89,721,632 2,744,266 (12,750) 92,453,148
Machinery and equipment 2,191,428 322,511 (8,162) 2,505,777
Total Capital Assets being depreciated 107,834,078 3,148,767 (20912) 110,961,933
Less Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (9,684,651} (793,457) - {10,478,108)
Improvemenis other than buildings (39.354,798) (3,790,323) 12,750 (43,132,371)
Machinery and Equipment {1414 983) (251,222} 8,162 _ {1,658043)
Total Accurnulated Depreciation (50,454,432) (4,835.002) 20,912 (55,268,522}
Total Capital Assets being depreciated, net 57,379,646 {1,686,235) - 55,603,411
Business-type Activities Capital Assets, net 3 59002987 § (1313240% §__ (126207) 5575603540

$129,207 in Construction in Progress was transferred to other capital asset categories during the fiscal year ended

September 30, 2006.
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE IV, DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED)
4,

c.

Capital assets (continued)

Depreciation

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activifies:

General government

Public safety

Transportation

Culture and recreation

Total depreciation expense - Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities:

Solid waste

‘Water/Sewer utility

Reclaimed water

Stormwater ytility

Marina

Golf Course

Total depreciation expense - Business-type Activities
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§ 705,666
858,856
270,439

1,714,856

$ 3549817

§ 138516
3,227,881
1,045,356

212,314
189 688

21,247
$ 4,835,002




CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE1V. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS {CONTINUED)

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED)

4,

d.

Capital assets (continued)

Construction contracts.

The City has entered into contracts for the construction of its general fixed assets as follows:

September 30, 2006

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACT IN
AMOUNT PROGRESS
Governmental Activities:
The City continued the construction of the new
Community Center. This project was completed on
December 1, 2006. $ 9,800,000 $ 8,464,161
The City has completed the design for a new skate park
at the MLK Recreation Center. The City anticipates that
it will enter a contract ta have the pack constructed by
June 2007. 542,000 19,447
The City has begun the process of designing various
improvements to Edgewater Park. 450,000 1,645
The City has begun the process of making various
improvements to the Wilson Street Pier/Park area. 125,000 49 763
The City has entered into a contract te renovate Fire
Station #62 and to add an additional bunkroom. _ 155,000 111,447
Total Governmental Activities 3 1,072,000 § 8,646,463
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NOTEIV, DETAIL NOTES -

CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

L FUNDS

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED)

4,

d.

Capital assets (continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED

The City has entered into contracts for the construction of Business-type Activities assets as follows:

Utility Fund:

The City is in the process of entering into a
contract to upgrade the Victoria Drive area

waterline.

The City has continued to work on a project to

improve

Stormwater Fund

The City has contracted with a consultant to
begin the process of improvements to Curlew

its micro filtration system.

Total Utility Fund

Creek Channel A,

The City has begun to make improvements to

the Heather Lake Ditch.

The City has entered into a contract with
Rowland, Inc. for the installation of a

Stormwater filiration unit at Bayweod Drive in

fiscal year 06/07,

The City has entered into a contract with TBE
Group for engineering services related to the

restoration of Hammock Park.

Reclaimed Water

The City has entered into a contract with US
Water Services to replace various reclaimed

Total Stormwater Fund

Fund

water pumps.

Total Reclaimed Water Fund
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September 30, 2006
ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACT N
AMOUNT FROGRESS

$ 80,000 § 24,220
25.000 21,931

$ 105000 § 46,151
$ 2,036,929 § 160,321
100,000 93584

205,000 1,603
1,905,,000 210,259

3 4246929 § 381,567
3 370000 $ 33,541
5 370000 $ 33,541




CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

A. ASSETS (CONTINUED)

4.

€.

Capital assets (continued)

Construction contracts {continued)

September 30, 2006

ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACT IN
St Andrew Golf Course Fund: AMOUNT FROGRESS
The City has begun the process of building a
new metal storage building at 51. Andrew Links
Golf Course, g 70,000 § 26974
Total St. Andrews Golf Course Fund g 70,000 & 26,974
TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS 3 4,791,929 % 488,213
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTEIV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

A, ASSETS (CONTINUED)
5. Interfund receivables, payables, and transfers
The composition of interfund balances as of September 30, 2006, is as follows:

Interfund transfers

Transfers In:
Reclaimed Golf Non Major internal
Transfers Qut: General Water Utiljty Course Governmental Service Tota!
General $ - b3 - $ - b} - % 1,551,591 $ 730,505 $ 2,284,096
One Cent Sales Tax - - - . 234,168 - 234,168
Nonmajor Governmental
125,000 443,000 (481,230) 592 988 234,168 380,170 559,928
Total transfers 3 125500 § 441000 5 (481230) $ 93988 » 787759 5_1110,675 5 3,078,192
6. Advances To/From Other Funds
Advances from Other Funds Advances to Other Funds
Fund Amount Fund Amount
General $ 108227

Leisure Services Capital Improvement

53,183

Golf Course g 161,410 s 161,410

The City Commission has determined that interest will not be accrued on this Advance.

B. LONG-TERM DEBT

The following changes occurred in long-term debt during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006:
1. Capital Leases

On April 18, 2001, the City entered into a lease-purchase agreement to finance $696,102 in vehicles. This five-year
capital lease has a 4.26% interest rate and provides for annua! payments of $152,524,

On March 5, 2002, the City entered into a lease-purchase agreement to finance $1,721,143 in vehicles. This five-year
capital lease has a 3.3% interest rate and provides for annual payments of $379,094.
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTEIV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOQUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

1. Capital Leases {continued)

On December 30, 2002, the City entered into a lease purchase agreement to finance $795,912 in vehicles. This five-year
capital lease has a 2.41% interest rate and provides for annual payments of $170,874.

On February 19, 2004 the City entered into a lease-purchase agreement to finance $303,552 in vehicles. This five-year
capital lease has a 2.78% interest rate and provides for annual payments of $63,866.

On December 31, 2003, the City entered into two lease-purchase agreements for two mailing machines. The four-year
capital leases financed mailing machines with costs of $80,404 and $16,966. Those leases have a 7.1% interest rate and
provide for annval payments of $17,388 and $6,132, respectively.

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimmm lease payments at September 30,
2006 were as follows:

Governmental
Activities
2006 3 791,879
2007 639,355
2008 242,620
2009 65,866
Total minimum lease payments 1,739,720
Less: amount representing interest (88.700)
Present value of minimum lease payments §_ 1651020
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE1V. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)
2. Special Assessments
a. Drainage Assessment Revenue Note, Series 1998 - Harbor View Villas Subdivision

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 1998, the City underraok a special assessment project for the dredging of
certain canals within the Harbor View Villas Subdivision. Terms of this special assessment require that the cost of
this project will be levied against the properties benefited. The total cost of this project and the related special
assessment was $696,563, The repayment terms of this assessment are summarized as follows:

- The Assessment may be peid at any time within thirty days after the project is completed or

- the Assessment may be paid in ten equal annual installments with interest at the rate of five and three-
quarters percent. The first payment of this assessment was due in fiscal year 1998-1999 and wall be
included in the ad valorem tax bill issued by the Pinellas County, Florida tax collector.

In September 1998 the City issued a Drainage Assessment Revenue Note, Series 1998 for $600,000 to finance the above
project. Repayment for this note is from drainage assessment revemes. Drainage assessment revenues received from
Harbor View Villas residents assessed for the respective benefited properties are leined and pledged as collateral. Inthe
event that Drainage Assessment Revenues are not sufficient to cover the indebtedness, the note is also secured by a
pledge of the proceeds generated by the One Cent Infrastructure Sales Surtax.

Repayment terms:

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows:

Criginal Amount Issued: $ 600,000
Final Maturity: September 17, 2008
Interest Rate:
Years | - 3 4.75%
Years 6 - 10 55.88% of SunTrust Bank Prime Rate on September 17, 2003
Annual payments:
Years 1 -5 $ 76,776
Years 6- 10 3 76,776 (assuming no change in rates)

Amount Outstanding at

September 30, 2006: ) 133,792
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTEIV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCQUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
2. Special Assessments (continued)
b. Promissory Note, Series 2002A Spanish Trails Subdivision
During the fiscal year ended Septernber 30, 2002, the City undertook a special assessment project to install a sanitary
sewer system in the Spanish Trails Subdivision, Terms of this special assessment require that the cost of this project will
be levied against the properties benefited. The total cost of this project is anticipated to cost more than the related special
assessment of $759,000. The repayment terms of this assessment are summarized as follows:

- The assessment may be paid at any time within thirty days after the project is completed or

- The Assessment may be paid in ten equal annual instaliments with interest at the rate of five and three-

quarters percent. The first payment of this assessment will be due in fiscal year 2002-2003 and will be

included in the ad valorem tax bill issued by the Pinellas County, Florida tax collector.

On May 3, 2002, the City issued a Promissory Note, Series 20G2A for $759,000 to partially finance the above project.
Repayment for this note is from sanitary sewer assessment revenues.

Sanitary sewer assessment revenues received from Spanish Trails residents assessed for the respective benefited
properties ate leined and pledged as collateral. In the event that Sanitary Sewer Assessment Revenues are not sufficient to
cover the indebiedness, the note is also secured by a pledge of the proceeds from other non-ad valorem revenues.

Repayment terms:

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows:

Original Amount Issued: $ 755,000
Final Maturity: May 3, 2012
Interest Rate: 4.65%
Annual payments; $ 96,953
Amount Qutstanding at

September 30, 2006: § 496,003
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE1V. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

2. Special Assessments {(continued)
c. The schedule of future debt service requirements for assessment bonds at September 30, 2006 were as follows:
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Principal Interest Principal [nterest
2007 $ 69976 § 4800 $ 73566 3 23,064
2008 63,816 3,715 76,987 19,643
2009 - - 80,567 16,063
2010 - - 84,147 13,483
2011 - 2012 - - 180,736 _ 11,524
2 133,792 §. 10,515 3 ..496,003 § 83777
3. Revenue Bonds
a. Spring Traiming Facility Revenue Notes, Series 2001

On March 30, 2001, the Commission approved Resolution 01-14, Stadium and Recreation Facilities Financing
Amendment, a resolution which amended Resolution 01-10. This resalution authorized the issuance of City revenue
notes (spring training facility) series 2001 A, series 2001B and series 2001C in the principal amounts of $6,000,000,
$1,700,000 and $4,300,000, respectively. These revenue notes are to finance the cost of renovation, construction and
improverments to the City’s existing baseball training facilities. As part of the financing of the Stadium and Recreational
Fagilities, the City has commitments for funding from Pinellas County ($3,000,000) and from the State of Florida
{$6,000,000).

The repayment of the notes will be from pledged revenues consisting of State payments, County payments and
Guaranteed Entitlement Revenues (Noo-Ad Valorem).

Annual Payment Requirement $ 1,075,184
(Principal and interest)
Less annual amount provided by:

State (500,000)
County (297 980)
City's portion $ 277,204
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
3 Revenue Bonds (continued)
Repayment terms:
The terms, mterest rates and annual payments for the three revenue notes are as follows:

2001A 2001B 2001C

Original Amount Issued: $ 6,000,000 $ 1,700,000 $ 4,300,000

Final Maturity: Apal 1, 202] Apall, 2016 April 1, 2016

Interest Rates: 4.65% 276% 6.72%

Monthly Payments § 38427 313,220 $37.952

Amount Qutstanding at

September 30, 2006 $ 4876637 $ 1219,185 $ 3211423
b. Toronto Blue Jays Revenue Note, Series 2002:

During fiscal year 2001-2002, the City incurred additional costs to construct the Spring Training Facilities. The City
issned the Toronto Blue Jays Revenue Note to partially finance the above project on September 6, 2002.

Lease revenues from the Toronto Blue Jays are pledged as collateral.

Repayment terms:
The term, interest rate and payments are as follows:
Original Amount Issued: $ 250,000
Final Maturity: July 1, 2017
Interest Rate: 5.00%
Annual payments:
Year 1 $ 21,791
Years2 - 15 $ 24,086
Amount Cutstanding at
September 30, 2006 § 200,065
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTEIV. DETAN NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)
B. LONG-TERM DERT (CONTINUED)

3. Revenue Bonds (continued)
c. Capital Improvement Revenue Note, Series 2002;

On September 19, 2002, the Commission approved Resolution 02-36. This resolution anthorized the issuance of City
revenue notes for milling and resurfacing approximately 36,000 square feet of concrete pavement on Palm Boulevard.
Scape also includes a continuous asphalt rubber membrane interlayer, miscellaneous curb replacement, storm drainage
upgrades and median island modifications. The City is required to establish and maintain a fund to manage the debt
service {Capital Improvement Revenue Note, Series 2002 Debt Service Fund), which had no activity in the current fiscal
year. Non-ad valorem revenues and funds in the debt service fund are ptedged as collateral.

Funds of the Debt Service Fund are ret%uired to be continuously secured in the same manner as State and nunicipal
deposits are required to be secured by the laws of the State of Florida.

Repayment terms:

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows:

Original Amount Issued: $ 943,904
Final Maturity: October 1, 2012
Interest Rate: 3.48%
Annual payments: $ 113,498
Amount Outstanding at September 30, 2006 § 694,510

d. Capital Improvement Revenue Note, Series 2003:

On October 16, 2003, the Commission approved Resolution 03-38. This resolution authorized the issuance of a capital
improvement note, Series 2003 of the City and execution and delivery of a loan agreement of $4,900,000 between the
City and the Bank of America, N.A. The interest rate on this loan is 3.37%.

The loan is for the financing of the acquisition of land and construction of the Stirling Recreation Center. The City’s
Sales Tax Revenues are pledged as collateral.

Repayment terms:

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows:

Original Amount Issued: $ 4,900,000
Final Maturity: November 1, 2013
Interest Rate: 337%
Annual payments: $ 5E5,806
Amount Qutstanding at Septemnber 30, 2006: § 2,632,553
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

B. LONG-TERM DERBRT (CONTINUED)
3 Revenue Bonds {continued)
e. Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2005:

On July 7, 2005, the Commission adopted Resolution 05-22. The Resolution authorized the issuance of $10 million of
Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2005. These bonds are intended to pay the cost of the acquisition, construction,
equipping and installation of a new City Community Center and other capital projects. The City's Sales Tax Revenues
are pledged as collateral.

Repayment terms:

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows:

Original Amount Issued: $10,000,000
Final Maturity: October 1, 2025
Interest Rate: 3.0%-4.125%
Annual Payments; $750,000

Amount Qutstanding at September 30, 2006 $10,000,000

f. Utility Fund - Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993:
On October 5, 1993, the City issued $25,275,000 of Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993, to refund the
Utility System Revenue Bands, Series 1989. Bonds are payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds
provided by resolution, net revenues of the City's Utility System (consisting of the City's Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water
and Stormwater systems) and proceeds of the One-Cent Sales Tax.
The Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds resolution provides for:

Establishment and Maintenance of Various Funds:

Revenue Fund records all operating revenues and expenses of the system.

Debt Service Fund records the principal, interest and sinking fund requirements.

Reserve Fund, a reserve fund policy held for the maximum annual debt service requirement.

Renewal, Replacement and lmprovement Fund records payments for the cost of extensions, enlargements or additions, or
the replacement of capital assets and emergency repairs thereta.
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NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)
B. LONG-TERM DERBT (CONTINUED}

3

f.

Revenue Bonds (continued)

Utility Fund - Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 (continued):

Restrictions on the Use of Cash From Operations in Order of Priority:

Deposits are made to the Revenue Fund to meet current operations according ta the existing bond ordinance.
Deposits to the Debt Service Fund are required each month in an amount equal to one-sixth (1/6) of the interest
coming due on the next sermi-annual interest payment date, and one-twelfth (1/12) of the principal coming due
on the next principal payment date.

Deposits to the Renewal, Replacement and [mprovement Fund are required each manth equal to one-twelfth
{1/12) aof 5% of the gross revenues of the water and sewer system for the preceding fiscal year. No further
deposits will be required after the deposit reaches the amount of $200,000.

Early Redemption:

The bond resolution provides for early redemption, at the option of the City, of the Serial Bonds maturing on
October 1, 2003, and thereafter at call rates varying from 102% to 100% of the principal amount, dependent
upon the call date.

The Term Bonds maturing on October 1, 2010 and 2014, may, at the option of the City, be called for
redermption on October 1, 2005 at redemption prices equal to the principal amount thereof without premium.

Investment Restrictions:

Monies on deposit shall be continuously secured in the same manner as state and municipal deposits are
authorized to be secured by the laws of the State of Florida.

On October of 2003, the City issued $4,155,000 of Unility System Refunding Bonds, Series 2003 to refund a portion of
the Utility System Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. Bonds are payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds
provided by resolution, net revenues of the City's Utility System and proceeds of the One-Cent Sales Tax.

On January 17, 2006, the City issued 33,225,000 of Utility System Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 to refund the Unlity
System Revenue Bonds, Series 1993, Bonds are payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds provided
by resolution, net revenues of the City's Utility System (consisting of the City’s Water, Sewer, Reclaimed Water and
Stormwater systems) and proceeds of the One-Cent Sales Tax. $3,(55,000 of the Series 1993 bonds were refunded.
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NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED})

3 Revenue Bonds (continued)

f. Utility Fund - Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 (continued):
Repayment terms:

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows:

Original Amount Issued: $ 25,275,000
Final Maturity: October 1, 2014
Interest Rate: 2.60% 1o 6.75%
Annual principal payments: $ 930,000 t0 $1,610,000
Amounts Outstanding at
September 30, 2006
Series 1993 $ 6,385,000
Series 2003 2,125,000
Series 2006 3,225,000
Total 3 11,735,000
g. Reclaimed Water Fund - Utility System Revenue Note, Series 1994:

On October 6, 1994, the City obtained a $5,000,000 Revenue Note from SunTrust Bank of Tampa Bay to purchase and
install Reclaimed Water Distribution and service lines, meters and related equipment. Note proceeds were provided as
construction occwrred and as the City requested up to, and including, October 1, 1999. Qua October 15, 1999, the bank
extended that draw period from October 1, 1999 to October 1, 2003. All other terms and conditions remain in effect.

Annnal principal installments based on a 20-year fixed principal amortization are due from October 1, 1995 through
October |, 2014. The principal due shall vary up to, and including October 1, 2003, based on the construction draws.

[nterest at a rate of 5,20% is payable monthly up to October 1, 2002. From October 1, 2002 through Cctober 1, 2014,
level monthly amortization of principal and interest shall occur with the monthly payment being adjusted for interest rate
adjustments on October 1, 2002, 2005, 2008 and 2011.
The Utility System Revenue Note resolution provides for:

Establishment and Maintenance of Various Funds

Construction Fund records all note proceeds and related construction expense.

Advances

Advances shall occur monthly in minimum increments of $50,000 to pay for project costs, costs of issuance or
other related incidental costs.
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NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

3. Revenune Bonds (continued)
g. Reclaimed Water Fund — Utility System Revenue Note, Series 1994 (continued):
Early Redemption

The note resolution provides for early redemption, at the option of the City, in minimum increments of
$100,000 on the first day of any month.

Parity

This note is designated as an additional parity obligation to the Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds,
Series 1993,

Repayment terms:

The term, interest rate and payments are as follows:

Origmal Amount Issued to date: $ 3,427,703
Final Maturity: QOctober 1, 2014
Interest Rate: 5.20%, subject to adjustment on

October 1, 2008 and 2011

Interest Rate: 5.20%, subject to adjustment on
Qctober 1, 2008 and 2011

Annual payments; $ 283,095

Amount Outstanding at
September 30, 2006: $ 1,774,613
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NOTE IV. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
KR Revenue Bonds (confinued)
h Debt service requirements

Revenue bond debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

Principal [nterest Principal Interest

2007 $ 1,489,998 $ 1,014,591 §  1,318368 3 661,139
2008 1,564,677 951,973 1,301,389 604,078
2009 1,629,760 885,054 1,374,006 536,395
2010 1,702,609 814,395 1,458,850 458.071
2011 - 2015 7,455,746 2,812,578 8,057,000 941,465
2016 - 2020 4,969,498 1,353,461 - -
2021 - 2026 4,022,085 _ 488,773 - -
Total 3 22834373 § 8320825 § 13.509.613 33,201,148

L Refunded Issues

The City presently has outstanding revenue honds, which were refunded an October 5, 1993 as follows:

SEPTEMBER 39, 2006

1978 A Special Obligation § 3,440,000

Since U.S. Government cbligations are held in escrow for payment and interest, these bonds are not liabilities of the City.
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NOTE 1¥. DETAIL NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)

B. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

4, Changes in long-term liabilities

Long-term liability activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006:

Governmental Activities:
Capital leases

Special assessment debt with

governmental commitment

Mortgage note

Bonds payable
Revenue bonds

Estimated claims and
Judgments

Compensated absences
Governmental activity

long-term liabilities

Business-type activities:
Special assessment debt with
government commitment

Bonds payable
Revenue bonds

Deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums

On refunding

Total utility systemn
revenue bonds

Compensated absences

Business-type activity
long-term liabilities
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Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
F 1,651,020 § - 3 (739,659) 5 911,361 % 590,519
200,688 - {66.896) 133,792 646,894
- 3,900,000 (1,050,000) 2,850,000 2,850,000
23,951,069 - {1,116,696) 22,834 373 1,489 998
692,453 504,623 (591,852) 605,224 -
1.476.864 - (130,663} 1 346,201 -
$ 27972004 § 4404623 § (3,695,766} £ 28080951 § 4997413
3 5663001 % - § {(70.29%8) 3 496,003 3 73,566
14,727 081 3,225,000 {4,443,368) 13,509,613 1,318,368
31234 (34,704} 277,632
{1,491,804) - 101,755 (1,390,049} -
13,548,513 3.225.000 (4.376312) 12,397,196 1,318,368
912,496 - (31,055) 881 441 -
3 15027310 § 3,225,000 3§ (4477670) § 13,774,640 § 1391934



CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

NOTEIY. DETAI, NOTES - ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (CONTINUED)
B. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
4, Changes in long-term liabilities (continued)

Internal service fonds serve governmental and enterprise funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are included
as part of the above totals for governmental and business-type activities. Atyear-end $269,987 of internal service funds
compensated zbsences are included in the above amounts. Also, for the governmenta] activities, compensated absences
are generally liquidated by the general fund.

5. Mease Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds

Resolution 93-15 approved the issuance of $86,810,000 aggregate principal amount of the City's Hospital Revenue
Refunding Bonds pursuant to the Florida Industnal Development Financing Act. The Trustees of Mease Hospital, Inc.
d/b/a {"Mease Hospital Care (the "Hospital”) is undertaking a project (the "1993 Project") consisting generally of
advance refunding all or a portion of the outstanding City of Dunedin, Florida Hospital Refunding Bonds, Series 1985
(Mease Health Care) and all or a portion of the outstanding City of Dunedin, Florida Hospital Revenue Bonds, Sertes
1991 {Mease Health Care) (collectively, the "Refunded Bonds™).

The 1993 bonds were issued as a series of "additional bonds" pursuant to a Trust Indenture dated July 1, 1985, and
amended as of August [, 1991 and March 1, 1993, which provides that such bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a
debt, liability or obligation of the City or a pledge of the faith and credit of the City of Dunedin.

The Mease Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds were redeemed by the Hospital on November 18, 2003,
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V. OTHER INFORMATION

A. PENSION
1. Florida Retirement System

Plan Description: All of the City’s nonuniformed full-time employees (hired before January 1, 1996) participate in the
Florida Retirement System (FRS), a non-contributory cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement
system.

The City of Dunedin contributes to the FRS for the benefit of these employees. This retirement systermn is administered by
the Florida Depantment of Management Services, Division of Retirement.

FRS provides retirement and disability benefits , annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. Chapter 121 of the Florida Statutes assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to
the Department of Management Services through the Division of Retirement. The FRS issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for FRS. That report may be
obtained by wniting to: State of Florida, Division of Retirement, 3639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-
1560.

Funding policy: The FRS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates
that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll are adequate to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when
due. Level percentage of payroll employer contribution rates, established by state law, are determined using the entry-
age actuarial funding method. Future plan benefit changes, assumption changes, and methodology changes are amortized
within 30 years, using level doilar amounts. Except for gains reserved for rate stabilization, future actvarial gains and
losses are amortized on a rolling 10% basis, as a level dollar amount.

Deferred Retirement Option Program

The FRS Deferred Retirement Option Program (DROP) is available under the FRS Pension Plan when the member first
reaches eligibility for nommal retirement. DROP allows a member to retire while continuing employment for up to 60
months, While in DROP, the member’s retitement benefits (increased by a cost-of-living adjustment each July)
accurnulate in the FRS Trust Fund and earn interest compounded monthly, equivalent to an effective annual rate of 6.5%.

The ¢lection to participate in DROP must be made within 12 months of the member’s normal retirement date, unless the
member is eligible to defer the election. To participate for the maximum DROP period, the member must enter DROP
upon first reaching eligibility for normal retirement, or upon reaching an eligible deferral date as described below:

A member of the Regular Class, Elected Officers® Class, or the Senior Management Service Class
who reaches his or her normal retirement date before reaching age 57 may defer DROP enary until age
57 and still participate for 60 months,

A member of the Elected Officers’ Class who reaches his or her normal retirement date during a term
of office may defer the DROP election until the next succeeding term in that office and still participate
for up to 60 months or until the end of the succeeding term, whichever is less.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)}

A. PENSION (CONTINUED)

1. Florida Retirement System (continued)

Upon termination, the DROP account is paid out as a lump-sum payment, a rollover, or a combination partial lump-sum
payment and rollover, and monthly benefits are paid to the member in the amount as calculated upon entry into DROP,
plus cost-of-living adjustments for intervening years,

In most cases, the DROP participant must cease employment after a maximum of 60 months in DROF, must satisfy the
termination requirements for retirement, and is subject to reemployment restrictions thereafter. However, effective July
1, 2002, a DROP participant who holds an elective office covered by the Elected Officers’ Class may end DROP
participation and postpone compliance with termination requirements and reemployment limitations until he or she na
lenger holds the elective office (including consecutive terms in the same office). For the period of time between the end
of DROP participation and termination, no retirement credit is eamed and the member’s DROP accurmulation accrugs no
additional monthly benefits (but continues to earn interest).

Employers pay contributions at a rate of 10.91% of salary for all DROP participants as of September 30, 2006.

Retirement benefits and the City’s contributions rates are summarized as follows:

MEMBERSHIP
CATEGORY RETIREMENT BENEFIT

Regular 1.6% times years of service
times average compensation (5
highest years) if age 62 or 30
years of service at any age.

Elected State, 1.6% times years of service

County and City  times average compensation (5

Officers highest years} if age 62 or 30

years of service at any age.

VESTING

After 6
years of
creditable
service,

After6
years of
creditable
service.,

CITY CONTRIBUTIONS RATE
ACTUARIALLY DETERMINED

EMPLOYER
CONTRIBUTION
RATES
BEGINNING
JULY 1, 2006

9.85% of covered
payroll

13.12% of covered
payroll

EMPLOYER
CONTRIBUTION
RATES
THROUGH
JUNE 30, 2006

7.83% of covered
payrol}

10.45% of covered
payroil

C40



e

CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A. PENSION (CONTINUED)
1. Florida Refirement System (confinued)

The City’s contribution includes 1.11% for a post-retirement health insurance subsidy. FRS also provides disability and
survivors benefits. Benefits are established by Florida State Statute. The contribution requirements of emplovers are
established and may be amended by the Division of Retirement. The City’s contributions and its required contributions
for the past three years are summarized as follows:

Year Ended Required Contribution Percentage Contributed
September 30, 2006 $ 538,825 100.0%
September 30, 2005 § 501,069 100.0%
September 30, 2004 $ 643,208 100.0%
September 30, 2003 § 426,066 100.0%
September 30, 2002 $ 497,192 100.0%
September 30, 2001 3 624,557 100.0%
September 30, 2000 $ 801,558 100.0%

2. Firefighters® Retirement Fund
All of the City's full-time fire employees participate in a separate single-employer, defined benefit pension plan.

Current membership in the Plan is summarized as follows:

Group 9/30/06
Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits 36
Drop retirees 2

Terminated plan members entitled to but
not yet receiving benefits -

Active plan members

Fully Vested 13
Nonvested 37
Total 50
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V., OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A. PENSION (CONTINUED)
2. Firefighters’ Retirement Fund (continued)

Benefits for Firefighters are determined by category and length of service as follows:

BENEFITS . VESTING
Normal retirement at age 55 with ten years of service, age 52 After ten years of creditable
with 25 years of service, or completion of 20 years of credited service.

service, 3.0% of final three year average annual compensation
multiplied by years of service; reduced benefits for early
retirement.

Deferred Retirement Option Plan

Any Plan participant who is eligible to receive a normal retirement pension may elect to participate in a deferred
retirement option plan {DROP) while continuing his or her active employment as a firefighter. Upon participation in the
DROP, the participant becomes a retiree for all Plan purposes so that he or she ceases to accrue any further benefits under
the pension plan. Normal retirement payments that would have been payable to the participant as a result of retirement
are accumulated and invested in the DROP to be distributed to the participant upon his or here termination of
employment. Participation in the DROP ceases for a Plan participant after the earlier of 5 years or the attainment of
his‘her earliest normal retirement date. There were 2 members in the DROP as of September 30, 2006,

A portion of the plan net assets are designated for benefits that accrue in relation to the DROP accounts Allocations to
the DROP accounts determined in the most recent annual actuarial valuation for the year ended September 30, 2006 are
as follows:

Designated plan net assets for DROP

accounts (fully funded) h 219,140
Undesignated plan net assets 14,865,795
Total plan net assets ) £3,084,935

The City of Dunedin Firefighters’ Retirement Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
staterments and required supplementary information for single employer pension plans. That repert may be obtained by
writing 1o: Ear] “Sandy" Sanders, CPA, Finance Director, City of Dunedin, P.C. Box 1348, Dunedin, Florida 34697-
1348,
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

A. PENSION (CONTINUED)

2. Firefighters’ Retirement Fund {(continued)
Basis of accounting is the method by which revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and are reported in the
financial statements, The accrual basis of accounting is used for the Plan. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when they are earmned and collection is reasonably assured, and expenses are recognized when
the liability is incurred. Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due, City
contributions to the plan, as calculated by the Plan’s Actuary, are recognized as revenue when due and the City has made

a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the plan.

Firefighter contribution rates are established at 5.5 percent of salary. A state excise tax rebate is also received from the
State of Florida under Florida Statutes, Chapter 175 (C.1735) and the City in armounts sufficient to fund the Plan at an
actuarially determined rate specified by state statute, C. 175,

The City's Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligations for the year ended September 30, 2006 is as follows:

Annual required employer contributions $ 4423846
Interest on net pension obligation -
Adjustment to annual required contribution -
Annual Pension cost 442 846
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation .
Net Pension abligation (credit), beginning of year -
Net pension obligation (credit) end of year E -
The annual required contribution for current year was determined as part of the Septernber 30, 2005 (most recent)
actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a} 8.00% investment

rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary increases of 7.00% per year. Both (a) and (b)
included an inflation component of 3.50%. The assumptions did not include post-retirement benefit increases.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
A. PENSION (CONTINUED)

2, Firefighters' Retirement Fund (continued)
The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the
market value of investments over a five year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a

level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amornzation periods at September 30, 2006 was
30 years, The Plan’s three year trend information is summarized as follows:

Three Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ended Cost {APC) Contributed Obligation
5/30/03 $ 151,872 100% -
9/30/04 357,651 100% -
9/30/05 472,129 100% -

The City has calculated its pension liability (asset) as of September 30, 2006 in accordance with GASB Statement No.
27. The City bad no pension liability (asset) as of September 30, 2006 or at the prior year-end (September 30, 2003).
The Plan’s table of required supplementary information is presented below:



Y. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

A. PENSION (CONTINUED)

2. Firefighters’ Retirement Fund (continued)

Actuarial
WValuation
Date

QOctober 1

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuoarial
Accrued (Funded) UAAL as
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Value (AAL) AAT, Funded Covered of Covered
of Assets Entry Age {(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
(a) (b) (b-a) a’b (c) {(b-a)/c
$10,351,430 $8,592.200  $(1,759,230) 120% $1,797,034 {(98)%
11,878,157 8,570,841 (3,307,316) 139 1,770,728 (187)
12,887,811 9,304,219 (3,583,592} 139 1,985,393 (181)
13,884,790 11,037,197 (2,847,593) 126 1,744,823 (163)
14,097,536 11,627,907 (2,469,629) 121 1,784,028 (138)
13,438,085 12,275,088  (1,162,997) 110 1,968,250 (59)
13,291,020 12,802,764 (488,256) 104 2,357,502 (21)
13,356,895 13,507,266 150,371 99 2,575,437 6
13,430,948 14,332,863 901,915 94 2,738,385 33
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED}
A. PENSION (CONTINUED)

2. Firefighters’ Retirement Fund (continued)

Schedule of Emplover Contributions

Year Annual Actual
Ended Required Percentage

September 30 Contribution Contributed
1993 134,291 100%
1999 120,569 100%
2000 1,601 100%
2001 - 100%
2002 59,591 100%
2003 45,367 100%
2004 252,072 100%
2005 366,661 100%
2006 442 846 100%

3 Defined Contribution Plan

Beginning January 1, 1996, the City began providing retirement beaefits for all of its full-time employees not covered
under the Florida Retirement System or the Firefighters’ Pension Plan through a non-contributory defined cantribution
plan administered by the ICMA under their pratotype Profit-Sharing Plan and Trust Agreement, At September 30, 2006
there were 270 Plan members in the defined contribution plan. Benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the
Plan plus investment eamnings. Employees are eligible to participate after one vear of employment. The City's
contributions for each employee (and interest allocated 1o the employee’s account) are fully vested after six years of
continuous service, City contributions for, and interest forfeited by, employees who leave employment before six years
are used to reduce the City’s current-period contribution requirement. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are
established and may be amended by the City Commussion.

The City’s total payroll in fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 was $16,840,928. The City’s contributions were
calculated using the participant’s salary amount of $7.467,520, The City made the required contribution of $746,752.
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V. QTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED}

B. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section
457, as amended. This law stipulates that all assets and income of the plan must be held in trust for the exclusive benefit
of the Plan participants and their beneficiaries. Although the City is the Trustee of the plan, the City has no administrative
inrvolvement and performs no investing function for the pian and has not therefore, reported the plan in this financial
report.

The plan, available to all government employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years.
Participation in the plan is optional. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

C. SELF INSURANCE PROGRAM

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and
cmissions; injunes 1o employees; and natural disasters.

The City established a Self-Insurance Fund (an Internal Service Fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risk of
loss. Under this program, for the year ended September 30, 2006, the City utilizes this find to self-insure its first
$250,000 of property damage per occurrence (except wind, hail, and named storms, which has a deductible of 5% of total
location value per building, subject to a minimum of $500,000), and its first $250,000 of any employee work injury. The
City zlso self-insures all auto liability and the majority of general liability losses, except for Dunedin recreation summer
camp and St. Andrews Links Golf Course, where separate insurance policies are utilized. All claims for general liablity,
automobile liability, and police professional liability of covered assets are included within the City’s Self-Insurance Fund.
The city provides all of its employees’ health insurance under a commercial insurance plan,

The City purchases commercial stop-loss insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the Fund and for other
risks of loss. Settled claims have not surpassed the premiums for this commercial coverage for the [ast three fiscal years.

All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the Self-Insurance Fund based on a current claims

cost estimate to pay prior and current-year claims. The Self-Insurance Fund has not billed for nor reestablished a reserve
for any catastrophic losses.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
C. SELF INSURANCE PROGRAM (CONTINUED)

The current ¢laims liability of $605,224 reported in the Fund at September 30, 2006, based on information identified
prior to the issuance of the financial statements, indicates that is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of
the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These liabilities including IBNR
{incurred but not reported ¢laims) are based on the estimated ultimate cost of selling the claims (excluding the effects of
inflation and other societal and economic factors), using past experience adjusted for current trends and any other factors
that would modify past experiences. Claims liabilities also include specific incremental claim adjustment expenses. As
of January 22, 2007, all of those covered liabilities are still outstanding. Changes in the Fund’s claims liability amount
during the year ended September 30, 2006, are as follows:

Liability Balance Current Claim and Liability Liability Balance
September 30, 2005 Changes to Estimates Claim Payments September 3¢, 2006
3 692453 3 504,623 3 591,852 $ 605,224

D. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Other than the postretirement benefits deseribed in Section V.A.1, the City does not provide any postretirement health
care benefits,

Postemployment health care benefits are made available to the City’s terminsted employees in accordance with the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 {COBRA). Under COBRA, the City is required to offer an
election to deceased or terminated participants, their spouses or dependents, to continue coverage in the health plan
pravided by the City. The cost of coverage which the City may charge the participant may not exceed 102% of the
applicable premium.
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V. OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

E. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The City of Dunedin and other Pinellas County cities have entered into an agreement with PACT, Inc. and & local savings
and loan institution to guarantee payment of a portion of the principal and interest on mortgage notes in the aggregate
principal amount not to exceed $5,500,000. The notes wete issued by PACT, Inc. for the purpose of assisting in the
financing of a Pecforming Arts Center Theater which serves an area maxirnum including the City of Dunedin. No
payments would be due from the City unti] there was a foreclosure of the mortgage lien or title to the project had been
acquired by the Lender, resulting in less than fall payment of all amounts due. Demand shall have been made for all
payments due by the other cities under the Guaranty Agreements between each such public body. The notes were issued
for a period of 25 years in 1982,

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the State of Florida. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of
the applicable funds. The amount, if any. of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined
at this tirne, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. Various other suits and claims, arising in
the ordinary course of the City's operations, are pending against the City of Dunedin. These claims consist of personal
injury, discrimination, property damage and sales tax. The ultimate effect of such litigation cannot be ascertained at this
time, but are not expected to be material.

F. FEDERAL AND STATE GRANTS

The City participates in a humber of federal and state assisted programs, principal of which are the Federat Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA), Recycling Grant, CDBG for Streetscape Project, and Local Law Enforcement Block
Grant Program. These programs are subject to the financial and compliance audits made in accordance with the Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133. The audits of these programs for and including the year ended September 30,
2006 will be issued under a separate report. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the
granting agencies is immaterial to the City's Government-wide Financial Statements,
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

VI. CONDENSED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS FOR THE COMMUNITY
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND ARE PRESENTED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND

BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2006

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 631,210

Prepaid items 682

Accrued interest receivable 3.045
Total assets § 634,937

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 3 34,879

Contracts payable 4,075

Deposits payable 500
Total liabilities 39454

FUND BALANCE

Unreserved, undesignated 595,483
Total fund balance 595,483

Total liabilities and fimd balance 3 634937
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CITY OF DUNEDIN, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

V1, CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE COMMUNITY
REDEVELOPMENT AGERNCY FUND ARE PRESENTED AS FOLLOWS (CONTINUED):

COMMUNITY REDEVELOFMENT AGENCY FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES

Taxes:

Property 3 482,625
[ntergovernmental reventes -
Charges for services -
Fines and Forfeitures -

Impact fees -
Investment earnings (loss) 33,148
Assessments -
Rents (8.0035)
QOther revenue 27,763
Total revenues 535,532
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Economic environment 58,935
Capital projects:
Economic environment 4,024 553
Debt service:
Principal 1,050,000
[nterest =
Total expenditures 5,133,488

Excess of revenues

over (under) expenditures {4.597.956)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Debt proceeds 3,900,000
Transfers in 600,000
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,500,000
Net change in fund balance (97,956)
Fund balance - beginning 693,439
Fund balance - ending 3 595483
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Nonmajor Govemmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the receipt, custody, and expenditure of revenues from
specific sources for which the City is required legally to limit expenditures to particular uses and to account
separately for these resources.

Govermnment Grants Fund
To account for Federal, State and County grants, the use of which is restricted for certain projects.

Dunedin Stadium Fund

To account for the receipt and disbursement of revenues from various recreational activities as mandated
upon the issuance of Capital Improvement Recreation Certificates.

Impact Fees Fund
To account for the receipt and disbursement of fees levied to pay for future parkland, fire department capital
outlays, law enforcement capital outlays, and transportation capital outlays. This fund is also used to collect
for and disburse to the County its share of ransportation impact fees.
Fine Arts Center Fund

To account for the City's support to the Dunedin Fine Arts Center. This fund is fully supported by transfers
from the General Fund.

Community Redevelopment Agency Fund

To account for the receipt, custody and expenditure of property tax increment funds associated with related
redevelopment projects.

G. Koutsourias Youth Fund
To account for the receipt and disbursement of donated monies for recreation capital improvement and

maintenance programs at facilities owned and operated by the City. Any improvements funded in this
manner will become the property of the City.
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Debt Service Funds

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general
long-term debt principal and interest.

Harbor View Dredging Debt Service Fund

To accumulate monies from annual assessments levied on property owners for the payment of annual debt
service applicabie to Harbor View Villas.

Capital Improvement Debt Service Fund

To accumulate monies for the payment of annual debt service applicable to the resurfacing of Palm
Boulevard.

D-2



Capital Projects Funds

Capital Project Funds are used to account for resources o be used for acquisition or construction of major
capital improvement projects.
Stadium Capital Project Fund

To account for the receipt of taxable and nontaxable note proceeds, along with proper allocation
between taxable and nontaxable construction expenditures.

County Gas Tax Fund
To account for the costs of road and street improvements; funded by proceeds of the Pinellas County gas tax.
Leisure Services Capital Improvement Fund
To account for the renewat and replacement of recreation and parks equipment.
Capital Improvement Fund
To account for the acquisition of significant equipment items. These acquisitions are funded primarily by
transtfers from the General Fund. Nominal equipment acquisitions are accounted for in departmental
budgets.
Information Technology Project Fund

To account for the expenditures incuited to upgrade the City's Information Technology Infrastructure. The
major funding source is through capital tease proceeds.
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Cambining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
September 30, 2006

City of Dunedin, Florida

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts Recewable
Assassmentsfliens receivable, net of
allowance for uncallectibles
Pledges receivable
Due fram other funds
Oue from ather govemments
Prepad items
Accrued intarest receivable
Deposits
Advances to other funds
Restricted assets:
Temporarly restrcted:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accrued interest receivable
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Contracts payable

Deposits payable

Deferred revenue

Due to other funds

Due to ather govemments

Other current liabilities
Total liabilitias

FUND BALANCES

Raserved for encumbrances
Reserved for public safety programs
Reaserved for capital ptojects
Reserved for debt sefvice
Unreserved, designated
Unreserved, undesignated

Total fund balances

Tota! liabiities and fund balances

Special Revenye

Fine Community G. Special
Government Dunedin Impact Arts Redevelopment Koutsourias Revenue
Grants Stadium Fees Center Agency Youth Total
5 306 3 372,357 g 1,352,318 % 495 $ 631,210 5 23,018 5 2.374,704
- B2 - 682
2 1,728 6,667 {3 3,045 m 11,556
- 500 - - - 500
5 08 5 374,585 3 1,358,985 5 492 3 634,937 13 23129 $ 2392436
5 - 3 221 3 7.418 3 . 5 34,879 3 - § 42,518
205 - - - 4075 - 4,280
- 500 - - 500 - 1,000
- - 79,465 - - - 79,465
205 Te 86,883 - 39,454 - 127,263
103 - - - - 103
- 373,864 1,272,102 492 555,483 23,129 2 265070
103 373.864 1,272,102 492 595,483 23,129 2,265173
$ lil) 2 374 585 % 1,358,585 3 492 3 B34 937 3 23.129 $ 2,392 436
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City af Dunedin, Florida
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balantes
Nonmator Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

8-a

Special Revenue

Fine Community G. Special
Govemment Dunedin Impact Arts Redevelopment Koutsourias Revenue
Grants Stadium Fees Center Agency Youth Total
REVENUES
Taxes.

Property - - $ - 5 - 3 - H 482,625 $ - 3 482 825
Intergovernmental revenues - 797 984 - - - - 797,984
Charges for services - 290,545 - - - . 290,545
Fines andg Forfeitures - - - - - - -
Impact fees - - 183,966 - - - 183 966
Investment garnings (lirss) 15 16 699 57,280 51 33,148 1,146 108,340
Assessmenis - - - - - - .
Rents - - - - - -
Contributions and donatigng - - - - - 8.142 6,142
Other revenue - 31 43,750 - 15,758 - 63,539

Total revenues 15 1,105,259 284,956 51 535,532 7,288 1,933,141
EXPENDITURES
Cumrent:

Genraral govemment - - - - - - -

Public safety - - - B - - -

Physical environment - - - - - - -

Transportation - - - - - - -

Economic envirgnment - - - - 58,935 - 58,535

Culture and recreation - 134,142 - 137,588 - 9,802 281,532
Capital projects: .

General gavernment - - - - - - -

Public safety - . 20,396 - - - 20,396

Physical envirenment - - - - - - -

Transportation - - 45 896 - - - 45,896

EQOnomic enmaranment - - - - 4,024 553 - 4,024 553

Culture and recreation - - - - - - -
Debt service, -

Principal : - 571,211 - - 1,050,000 - 1,621,211

Interest - 428,060 1.740 - - - 529,800
Aids and grants - - - - - - -

Total expenditures - 1,233,413 68,032 137,588 5,133,488 9,802 6,582,323
Excess of revenues

owver {unger) expenditures 15 {128.154) 216,064 {137,537} (4,597,956} (2,514) (4,649,182)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Debt proceeds - - . - 3,900,000 - 3,900,000
Transfers in - 299 203 - 134,589 600,000 - 1,035,792
Transfers out - {125 000} - - - - {125,900Q)

Total other financing sources {uses) - 174,202 - 136,589 4,500,000 - 4,810,792
Net change in fund balances 15 46,049 216,964 {948) (87.956) {2.814) 161,610
Fund balances - beginning B8 327,815 1,055,138 1,440 693,439 25,643 2,103,563

Fund balences - ending % 103 5 373,864 $ 127302 3 492 3 535,483 $ 23,128 $ 2265173
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City of Dunedin, Florida

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Debt Service

Harbor View Capital
Oredging Improvement

Debt
Service
Tatal

REVENUES
Taxes.

Property 5 65,452 $
nterqovernmental revenues -
Charges for services - -
Fines ang forfeitures -
Impact fees 38,048 -
Investment earmings 10,529 4 670
Assessments - -
Rents - -
Contributions and donations - -
Other revenue . .

6,452

38,048
15,198

Total revenues 56 029 4670

59,699

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General governmant - -
Public safety - -
Physical envircnment 650 -
Transpartation - -
Evanomic environment - -
Cuiture and recreation - -
Capital projects:
General govemment - -
Public safety - .
Physical environmem - _
Transportation - -
Economic envirsnment - -
Cultyre and recreation - R
Debt service:
Principal 66,896 86,325
Interest 8,488 25663
Aids and grants - -

153,221
34,151

Total expenditures 76,034 111,988

188.022

Excess of revenues
aver {under) expendiures 21,005) {107 318}

{128,323)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 113.48%

113,499

Total other financing sources (uses) - 113,498

113,499

Net change in fund balances {21,005} 6,181
Fund balances - beginning 234 724 55,028

{14,824)
329,752

Fund balances - ending 3 213,719 3 101,209

314,928
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City of Dunedin, Florida

Combining Stat t of Rev , Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
N jor Gover tal Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended Saptamber 34, 2006
Capital Projacts
Leisura Grand Total
Stadium County Services Information Capitai Nonmajor
Capital Gas Capitaf Capital Technaology Projects Governmental
Project Tax {mprovement Improvement Project Total Funds
REVENUES
Taxes'

Property $ - 3 - 3 - $ - 3 - s - 3 489,077
intergovermnmental revenues - 339,861 - - - 339.861 1,137.845
Charges for senvices - - - - - - 290,545
Fines and forferdures - - - - - -
Impact fees - - - - - - 222,014
Investment eamings 8,647 40,812 278,762 27,368 15,636 372,225 4385 764
Assessmentis - - - - - - -
Rents - - - - - - -
Contributions and donafions - - 15,632 - - 15,832 21,974
Cther revenue - - 1,838 102,478 - 104,316 167,855

Total revenues 8,647 380,673 297,432 125,846 15,636 832,234 2,825,074
EXPENDITURES
Current

General government - - - 5,924 8,154 18,075 18,075

Public safety - - - 36,235 - 36,235 36,235

Physical enviranment - - - - - - 550

Transportation - - - - - - -

Econemic environment - - - - - - 584935

Culure and recreation 17,000 - 21978 B4 - 39,047 320579
Capital projects:

General govemnment - - - 26,445 346 625 73074 373,074

Fublic safety - - - 104,580 - 101,560 121,956

Fhysical environment - - - - - - -

Transportation - 53,602 - 163,586 - 217,188 263,084

Econgmic environment - - - - - - 4,024 553

Cuhure and recreation - - 7,823,679 187,206 - 8,010,885 8,010,885
Debt service:

Frincipal - - - 15322 - 15,322 1,785,754

Inerest - - - 2,065 - 2,085 566,016
Aids and granis - - - - - - -

Total expendiures 17,000 53,602 7,845,857 542 416 354,776 8,813,451 15,583,796
Deficiency of revenues

over {under) expenditures (8,353) 327,07 (7,548 225) {412 570} (339,140} (7,981,217 {12,758,723)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)

Debt proceeds - - - - - - 3,500,000
Transfers in - 234,168 321,085 250000 - 803,283 1,954 554
Transfers out - - {250,252} - - (290,2592) {415,252}

Total ather financing sources - 234,168 30,803 250,000 - 514,971 5,439,262
Net changs 1 fund balances (8,353) 561,238 (7.517.422) {162,570} {339,140) (7.466,246) {7.319,460)
Fund balances - beginning 187,726 555,564 9,325 984 613,868 491,767 11,174,809 13,608,224
Fund bajances - ending % 179, 373 $ 1,116 803 3 1,808 562 H 451298 % 152,627 3 3708663 3 E.288 764




City of Dunedin, Florida
Government Grants Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES

Intergovernmental revenues:
Grants - federal
Grants - state
Grants - local

Miscellaneous revenues:
Interest earnings
Contributions and donations
Other miscellanecus revenue

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Public safety
Physical environment
Cuiture and recreation
Capital outlay:
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Culture and recreation
Aids and grants
Tolal expenditures
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers in

Transfers out
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balance

Fund balances - beginning

Fund bhalances - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
- § - $ . 5 -

- - 15 13

- - 15 15

. - 15 15

- . 15 15
g8 88 88 -

88 $ a8 3 103 $ 15
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City of Dunedin, Flerida
Stadium Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended Seplember 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Origlnal Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for services:
Blue Jay ticket sales % 85,000 85,000 $ 200,711 $ 118,711
Parkingfconcessions 20,000 20,000 19,834 {166}
Special events 70,000 70,000 70,000 -
Miscellanreous revenues:
Interest earnings - - 16,699 16,659
Other miscellaneous revenue 922,604 922 984 768,015 {124,969)
Total revenues 1,097 284 1,097,984 1,105,255 7.275
EXPENOITURES
Current:
Culture and recreation
Concessions/novelties 123,222 123,222 134,142 {10.920)
Recreation - - . .
Capital outlay: - - - -
Debt service
Principal £71.211 571,211 571,211 -
Interest 525976 525,976 528,060 {2,084)
Total expenditures 1,220,409 1,220,409 1,233,413 (13,004)
Excess of revenues
over {under) expenditures (122,425) {122.425) (128,154) {5.729)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 299,203 299,203 295,203 -
Transfers out (125,000} {125,000} {125,000) -
Total ather financing sources (uses) 174,203 174,203 174,203 -
Net change in fund balances 51,778 51,778 46,048 (5,729}
Fund balances - beginning 327,815 327,815 327,815 -
Fund balances - ending $ 379,593 379,583 5 373.864 5 {5,729}




City of Dunedin, Florida
Impact Fees Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budgst to Actual
For tha Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounis Final Budget -
Positive
Criginal Flnal Actual Amounts {Negative)}
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues:
Teansportation impact fees $ 45,000 $ 45,000 5 183,966 5 138,966
Grants - federal -
Grants - state - - - -
Miscellaneous revenues:;
Land dedicalion fees 1,300,000 1,300,000 43,750 {1,256,250)
Fire facililies fees 10,000 10,000 - {10,000}
Police facilities fges 8,000 8,000 - {8,000
Inlerest earnings 45 357 45 357 57,280 11,823
Total revenues 1,408,357 1,408,357 284,996 {1,123,361)
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Public safety - - - -
Transportation - - . .
Capital autlay:
Public safety - - 20,356 (20.396)
Transportation 200,000 212,175 45 895 166,279
Culture and recreation - - - -
Debt service - - 1,740 {1,740)
Tolal expenditures 200,000 212,175 68,032 144,143
Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,208,357 1,186,182 216,964 {979.218)
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing uses - - - -
Net change in fund balances 1,208,357 1,196,182 216,964 {979,218}
Fund balances - beginning 1,055,138 1,055,138 1,055,138 -
Fund balances - ending $ 253,801 $ 2,251,320 $ 1,272,102 $ (975,218}
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City of Dunedin, Florida
Fine Arts Center Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expanditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES
Miscellanecus revenues:
Interest earnings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Culture and recreation
Capital:
Culture and recreation
Aids and grants
Tgtal expenditures

Excess of rovenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Total ether financing sources

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Origlnal Final Actual Amounts {Negative}
- - 3 51 $ 51
- - 51 $1
63,033 63,033 137 588 {74.555)
73,000 73,000 - 73,000
136,033 136,033 137,588 {1,555}
(138,033} {136,033) {137,537) {1,504}
136,033 136,033 136,589 556
136,033 136,033 136,589 556
- - (948) (948)
1,440 1,440 1,440 -
1,440 1,440 $ 492 § {548)
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City of Dunedin, Florida
Community Redevelopment Agency Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)}
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property 5 472,118 $ 472,118 L1 482,625 $ 10,506
Intergovernmental revenyes:
Grants - federal - - - -
Grants - state - - - -
Grants - logal 100,000 100,000 - {100,000}
Miscellaneous revenues:
Investment earnings 8,100 8,160 33,149 25,049
Rent - - - -
Contributions and donations . - - -
Other revenues 18,000 18,000 19,758 1,758
Total revenues §98.219 598,219 535,532 {62,687
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Ecenomic environment 82683 82,683 58,835 23,748
Capital projects:
Economic environment 1,142,000 1,142,000 4,024 553 (2,882,553}
Debt service:
Principal 1,050,000
Interest
Aids and grants - - - -
Total expenditures 1,224,683 1,224,683 5,133,488 (2,858,805}
Deficiency of revenues
over (under) expendilures (6526,4654) (626,464) {4,597,956) {3,971,492)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Debt Proceeds - - 3,900,000 3,900,000
Transfers in 600,000 600,000 600,000 -
Total gther financing sources 600,000 600,000 4,500,000 3,800,000
Net change in fund balances {26,464) (26,464) {97,956) {71.492)
Fund balances - beginning 693,439 693,430 693,439 -
Fund balances - ending $ 666,575 $ 666,975 $ 595,483 $ {71.492)
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City of Dunedin, Florida
G. Koutsourais Youth Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENUES
Miscellaneaus revenues:
Investment earnings
Contributions and donations
Other revenues
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Culture and recreation
Capital projects:
Economic environment
Aids and grants
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQOURCES (USES)
Cebt procaeds
Transfers in
Total cther financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budgst -
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Nagative)
$ - 3 - % 1,146 3 1,148
- - 6,142 6,142
- - 7,288 7,288
- - 9,802 {9.802)
. - 8,802 {9.802}
. . {2,514 (2,514)
- . {2,514) (2,514)
25,643 25,643 25,643 -
3 25,643 $ 25,643 ] 23,129 § {2,514)
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City of Dunedin, Florida
Harbor View Dredging Debt Service
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Bailances - Budget to Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property 3 - $ - § 6,452 L] 6,452
Miscellaneous revenues’
Interest earnings - - 10,529 10,529
Impact fees - - 38048 38048
Total revenues - - 55,029 55,029
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Physical environment - - §50 {650)
Debt service:
Principal ' - - 66,896 (56,896)
interest - - 8,488 {(B.4488)
Total expenditures - - 76,034 (76,034)
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures - - {21,005} (21,005}
Fund balances - beginning 234,724 234,724 234,724 -
Fund balances - ending $ 234,724 3 234,724 3 213,719 § {21,005}
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City of Dunedin, Florida
Capital Improvement Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual

For the Fiacal Year Ended September 30, 2006

REVENRUES
Miscellanepus revenues.
Interest earnings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Tola! expenditures
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES

Transfers in
Total other financing spurces

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
QOriginal Final Actual Amounts (Nepgative)
$ - - $ 4,670 3 4,670
- - 4,670 4,670
96,071 96,071 86,325 9,746
17,428 17,428 25,663 (8.235)
113,499 113,498 111,988 1,511
{113,499) {113.499) {107,318) 6,181
113,499 113,499 113,499 -
113,485 113,49% 113,499 -
- - 6.151 6181
95,028 95,028 95,028 -
g 65,028 55,028 $ 101,209 $ 6,181
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City of Dunedin, Florida
Stadium Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget to Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Pasitive
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Miscellaneous revenues:
interest earnings $ - $ - ] 8.647 $ 8,647
Total revenues - - 8,647 8,647
EXPENRDITURES
Current:
Culture and recreation - - 17,000 (17.000)
Capital projects:
Culture and recreation - - - -
Total expenditures - - 17 000 {17.000)
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures - - (8,353 (8,353)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {UJSES)

Debi proceeds . - - -
Transfers in - . - .
Transters out

Total other finaaging sources (uses) - - - -

Net change in fund balances - - {8,353) (6,353)
Fund balances - beginning 187,726 187,726 187,726 -
Fund balances - ending $ 187,726 $ 157,728 $ 179,373 $ {8,353)
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City of Dunedin, Florida
County Gas Tax Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Baiances - Budget to Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positlve
Original Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues:
Loca! option gas tax ' $ 310,000 $ 310,000 $ 339,861 $ 29.861
Fines and forfeits - - - -
Miscelizaneous revenues:
interest earnings 5,600 5,500 40,812 35,212
Total revenues 315,600 315,600 380,673 65,073
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation - - - -
Cagpital projects:
Transportation 715,000 825168 53,602 775,566
Aids and grants - - - -
Total expenditures 715,000 829,168 53.602 775,566
Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (359,400} (513,568) 327,071 840,639
CTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 120,000 234,158 234,168 -
Tota! other financing sources 120,000 234,168 234,168 -
Nel change in fund balances {278,400) {279.400) 561,239 840,639
Funda balances - beginning 555,564 555,564 555,564 -
Fund balances - ending 3 276,164 $ 276,164 $ 1,116,803 $ 840,639
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City of Dunedin, Florida
Leizure Services Capita! improvement Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
QCriglnal Flnal Agtual Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenues:
Grants - state $ - $ - 5 - § -
Misceliangous revenues;
Bond proceeds - - - -
interest earnings 10,494 10,494 279,762 269,268
Cantributions - - 17,670 17.670
Tolal revenues 10,494 10,454 297,432 286,938
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - - -
Culture and recreation - - 21,978 {21,978)
Capital outlay:
Culture ang recreation 160,000 5,319,747 7.823675 1,496,068
Aids and grants - - - -
Cebt service:
Principal - - - -
Interest - . - -
Total expenditures 160,000 9,310,747 7.845 657 1,474,090
Excess of revenues over {under) expenditures (149,508) {9,309,253) (7,548,225) 1,761,028
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {(USES)
Debt proceeds - - - -
Transfers in 321,085 321,095 321,005 -
Transfers out - {290,252) {280,294) -
Total other financing sources (uses) 321,005 30,803 30,803 -
Net change in fund balances 171,589 {9,278,450} (7,.517,422) 1,761,028
Fund balarces - beginning 9,325,984 9,325,084 §,325,984 -
Fund balances - ending $ 9497573 $ 47,534 § 1,808.562 $ 1,761,028
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City of Dunedin, Florida
Capital Improvement Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Qriginal Final Actual Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES
Miscellaneous revenues:
Interest earnings $ 5,170 $ 5,170 $ 27,368 L3 22,198
Contributions - - - -
Szle of fixed assets - - - -
Other revenue - - 102,478 102,478
Total revenues 5170 5170 129 B45 124 876
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Generai government - - 9,924 (9,924)
Public safety - - 36,235 {36,235)
Physical envirgnment - - - -
Trangportation - - - -
Economic environment
Cufture and recreation - - 69 {69)
Capital oullay:
General government 75,000 85,148 26 449 58,697
Public safety 223,000 288,000 101,560 186,440
Physical environment - - - -
Transportation 24,000 169,470 163,586 5,884
Economic envirenment - . - -
Culture and recreation - - 187,206 {187,2086)
Debt service - -
Principai - - 15,322 (15,322}
Interest . - 2,085 {2,065}
Total expenditures 322,000 542 816 542 416 200
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures {316,830) {537,448) {412 570} 124 876
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers in 250,000 250,000 250,000 -
Total ather financing scurces {uses) 250,000 250,000 250,000 -
Net change in fund balances {66.830) (287,448) {162,570) 124,876
Fund balances - beginning 613,868 613,868 613,868 -
Fund balances - ending $ 547,038 $ 326,422 $ 451,208 3 124,876
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City of Dunedin, Florida
Infermation Technology Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes In Fund Balances - Budget to Actual
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Variance with

Budgeted Amounts Final Budget -
Positive
Origlnal Final Actual Amounts {Negative)
REVENUES
Charges for services:
QOther charges for services $ - $ - ] - 5 -
Miscellaneous revenues:
Interest earnings 12,726 12,728 15,636 2,810
Other revenues - - - -
Total revenues 12,726 12,726 15,636 2.810
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - 8,151 (8.151)
Capita! projects:
General government 297,300 404,362 346,625 57,737
Tolal expenditures 297,300 404,362 354,776 49,586
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures {284,574) {391,636} {339,140) 52,496
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt proceeds - - - -
Operating transfers in . - - -
Total other financing sources {uses) - - . -
Net change in fund balances {284,574) {391,636) {339,140 52,496
Fund balances - beginning 491,767 491 767 481,767 -
Fund balances - ending & 207,193 $ 100,131 § 152,627 b 52,496

D-24



Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds are utiiized to finance and account for services and commodities furnished by a
designated department to other departments within the City.

Vehicle Maintsenance Fund

This fund is utilized to account for the cost of automotive and other motorized equipment of the City. The
acquisition cost of new or upgraded equipment is financed through user departments, and the asset value is
simultaneously contributed to the Vehicle Maintenance Fund. The cost of replacement of existing equipment
is finranced through funded depreciation charges.

Building Maintenance Fund
This fund is utilized to account for the cost of providing custodial and building maintenance services to the
varnious depariments. The departments are charged for these services based upon the total square footage
of each area. Capital assets constructed by the Buiiding Maintenance Department are charged to the various
departments upon the completion of the project.

Self - Insurance Fund

To account for the City's limited self-insurance program, wherein all funds are assessed charges based on
damage claims accrued and on allocated proration of insurance premiums.
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City of Dunedin
Intermal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Net Asselts

Septamber 30, 2006

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agent
Accounts receivable
Due from other govemments
Inventories
Prepaid items
Interest receivable
Deposits

Toetal current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction-in-progress
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, net of
accumuiated depreciation
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued salaries payable
Due to other funds
Contracts payable
Accrued interest payable
Capital leases payable - current

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Advance from other funds
Capital leases payable
Compensated absences
Claims liabilities
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASBETS
invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Vehicle Building Self
Maintenance Malntenance Insurance Total

3 556,507 3 1,007,148 $ 3,348,342 5,311,897
94 961 - - 94,9561

4,601 4,902 16,297 25,800

. - 40,000 40,000

1,056,069 1,812,050 3,404,639 5,472,758
464,718 $73,182 - 1,437,800
4,744 - - 4,744
10,060,705 858,916 4757 10,154,378

- 31,695 - 31,685
(6,675,367) {371,427 {3,164) (7,049,958)
3,854,800 722,366 1,583 4,578,759
4,510,869 1,734,416 3.406,232 10,051,517
55,113 15,879 19,898 20,890

5,940 11,247 860 18,047

25,258 - - 25258
590,573 - - 590,573
676,884 27,126 20,758 724,768
293,289 - - 293,289
88,925 150,663 30,357 269,985

- - 605,224 605,224

382,214 150,663 635621 1,168,488
1,059,088 177,789 §56 379 1,853,256
3,561,511 722,366 1,593 4,285,470
290,260 834,261 2,748,260 3,872,781

$ 3,851,771 $ 1,556,627 $ 2749853 8,158,251
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City of Dunedin
Intarnal Service Funds

Combining Statemaent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Qperating revenues.
Charges for services
Miscellaneous revenue
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Supplies and services
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income / {loss})

Nonoperating revenues {expenses)
Investment earnings
Grant Revenue
Interest/amortization expense
Gain on sale of capital assets
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses)

Income before contributions and transfers
Transfers in

Transfers out

Change In net assets
Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending

Vehicle Building Self
Maintenance Maintenance Insurance Total

$ 3326828 3 1,414 424 $ 2,040,836 § 6,782,088
446 20672 198,585 220,103

3,327,274 1,435,085 2,239,821 7,002,191
531,064 1,053,507 86,946 1,671,517
1,453,770 419,983 1,838,970 3712723
1,022,520 61,263 1,532 1,085,315
3,007,354 1,534,753 1,827,448 5,469.555
319,820 {99,857) 312.373 532,636
51,533 45,787 151,608 248 528
(12,082) - - {12,082}
25,885 - - 25,885

65,336 45,787 151,608 262,731
385,256 (53,87%) 463 981 795,367
90,584 264,801 - 355685
- - {5,350} {5,350)

476,140 210,931 458,631 1,145,702

3,375 61 1,345,686 2,291,222 7.012,549

$ 3,851,771 $ 1,566,627 § 2,749,853 $ 8158,251
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City of Dunedin
Internal Service Funds
Combining Statement of Cash Fliows

For tha Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006

Vehicle Building Self
Maintenance Malntenance Insurance Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 3,326,828 £ 1,414,424 $ 2,131,448 $ 6,872,700
Payments {o suppliers (1,675,958} (413,487} (1,818,354} (3,908,799)
Payments {0 employees {528,816) {1,056.037) {78,825) {1,663,778}
Other operating revenue 446 20,672 198,885 220,103
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 1,222,500 (34,428) 332,154 1,520,226
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers in 90,884 264,801 - 355,685
Transfers out - - (5.350) (5,350}
Net cash used by noncapital financing activities 90,884 264,801 {5,350) 350,335
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of assets 25,885 - - 25,885
Purchase of capital assets (890,595) (139,319) - {1,029,914)
Principal paid on capital debt {719,588) - - {719,088)
Interest paid on capital debt {47,857) - . (47.657)
Net cash provided by {used in} capital and
related financing activities {1,632,355) {139,319) - {1.771.674)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment earnings 50,120 43,171 142,828 235,119
Net cash provided by investing activities 50,120 43,171 142,828 235,118
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent: {268,851) 134,225 469,632 335,008
Cash and cash equivalents - October 1 1,225,358 872,923 2,878,710 4,976,891
Cash and cash eguivalents - September 30 $ 956,507 $ 1,007,148 $ 3348342 $ 5311987
Reconclliation of operating loss to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Operating income / {loss) $ 319,820 § {99,657) 3 312,373 $ 532,636
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,022,520 61,263 1,532 1,085,315
DCecrease in due from other governments - - 90,612 90,612
{Increase) decrease in
Inventories {8,755} . - (8,755)
Prepaid items 96 88 - 184
Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable (113,529) 6,408 6,845 {100,276)
Accrued expenses 240 333 43 616
Claims liabilities - - (87,229) {(87.229)
Compensated absences 2,008 {2,863} 7.878 7,123
Tetal adjustments 902,580 65,229 19,781 987,590
Net cash provided by {used i) operating activities 5 1,222 500 $ (34 428) 3 332,154 3 1!5205226
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Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources that are managed in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
other parties or funds.

Pension Trust Funds

Firefighters' Retirement Fund

To account for the accumulation of resources to be used for the retirement annuities of all firefighters. The
City contributes an amount determined by an annual actuarial study.

Defined Contribution Plan Fund

To account for the accumulation of resources to be used for retirement of non-special risk employees hired
after December 31, 1895; the City contributes 10% of the employee's wages.
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City of Dunedin
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2006

Firefighters' Defined
Retirement Contribution
Pension Pansion
Plan Plan Total
ASSETS
investments $ 15037172 $ 3369415 $ 18,406 587
Due from other govarnmenis 45 988 - 45 988
Prepaid items 793 - 793
Accrued interest/dividends receivable 216,709 - 216,708
Total assets 15,300,662 3,369,415 18,670,077
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 215,727 - 215,727
Total liabilities 215,727 - 215,727
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 15,084,935 $ 3,369.41%5 $ 18,454,350
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City of Dunedin
Combining Statement of Changes In Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
September 30, 2006

Firefighters’ Defined
Retirement Contribution
Pension Pension
Plan Plan Total
ADDITIONS:
Cantributions:
Employer $ 442,846 $ 746,752 $ 1,189,598
Pian members 143,030 - 143,030
Tota! contributions 585876 746 752 1,332,628
Investment earnings:
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 557,641 68,092 825,733
Interest 259,544 34,911 294,455
Dividends 176,501 36,187 212,668
Total investment earnings 993,686 138,170 1,132,856
Less investment expenses (144 352) “ (144,352}
Net investment earnings 845,334 139,170 988,504
Miscellanecus revenue 208,084 - 208,084
Total additions 1,643,284 885,922 2,529,216
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits 944,237 - 944 237
Administrative expenses 8,649 101,165 109,814
Total daductions 952 886 101,165 1,054,051
Change in net assets 690,408 784,757 1,475,165
Net assets - beginning 14,394,527 2,584,658 16,979,185
Net assets - ending $ 15,084,935 $ 3,368,415 $ 15,454,350

D-31



This page is intentionally left blank

D-32



Statistical Section

This part of the City of Dunedin’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the government’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the government’s financial performance and well-being have changed overtime.............cocoooiiiienininninns E-1

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government’s
most significant local revenue source, the PIOPEILY BX. . . ocveririiiriirre e e e ir ettt e e e e e s a s E-§

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability

of the government’s current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability

to issue additional debt in the fIITE. . ... i e e et e e e iaaes E-12
Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader

Understand the environment within which the govemrnent’s financial activities

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader

Understand how the information in the government’s financial report relates
To the services the government provides and the activities it performs...........oovii i, E-20

Sources; Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
Financial reports for the relevant year.
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